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ndependent Auditors Report

To the Shareholders of Al Hassan Ghazi Ibrahim Shaker Company

We have audited he consalidabed inancial stalements of Al Hassan Ghazi lbrahim Shaker Company = a Saudi
Joint Slock Company (the Company”} and its subsidiaries {collectively referred o as “the Group™) which
comprse the consolidated stalement of financal position as at 31 Dacembsr 2020, the consolideted statements
of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income, changes In eguity and cash flows foe the year then ended,
and notes (1) bo (33), compriging significani accounting polices and olhar explanatory information,

Im cir apinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statemants present fairy, in all matarial respects, e
consolidatad financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, is consolidabed financial performance
and its congolidaled cagh Nlows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards that ara andorsed in the Kingdom of Sawdl Arabla and ather standards and pronsuncemente issued
by Saudi Organizalion for Cerlified Public Accoundants (SOCPA)L

Basis for Dpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Awsditing (154s) that are endarsed in the
Kingdom of Sawd Araba, Our responsibilities under those standards are further describad in the Audtors
Respansibiliies for the Audid of the Coneolideted Financial Statemeants secion of our repart. We are
imdependant of the Group In accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics that are endorsed In
the Kingdom of Sawdi Arabia that are relevant to owr audit of the consolidated financial statemens, and we
hawve fulfilled our ather ethical responsibiliies n accordancs with these requirements. Wa beleve that the audin
avidanca wa hawve obtained ks sufficiant and appropriate to provide & besls lor e apinion

Key Audit Matters

koay audit matlers ane those mattess thak, in our professional pedgment, were of most significance in aur audit
of tha consalidated financial statements of the curren] pedod, These mallers were addressed in the context ol
our @it of the consolidated financial stataments a5 a whole, and in forming our opinson thereon, and we do
noi provide a separate opinlon on thess malters,
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naependent Auditors Report

To the Shareholders of Al Hassan Ghazi lbrahim Shaker Company (Continuad)

Hey Audit Mattars (continued)

Impairment of Inventories

Refer fo note 2.2 for the accounting palicy on imentories and note B for the inventories disclosure.

Key audit matter

| As at 31 December 2020, the Group's gross

inventorios balance was SR 338 millian (2019 SR
305 milion) with an impairmsaent alowance of SR 42

[ millcn (2019: SR 28 million).

The management determines the lavel of
chsolescence of inventories considering the nabure
of the product. aging profile and sales expectations
using historks fremds and olher qualitative factors,
Further, al sach reporting dale, management
reviews the valuation of imventories and the cost of
inwenlorias arg writhan down where inventones ara
forecasted to be sold al below cost.

Wa considerad this as a key audil matter as the
managemard  applies  significanl  judgment in
detarmining an appropriate impairment allowanos
for inveniorias as these products are susceplible to
market changes, customer elememis  and
technological changes which may cause a
significant impact on the value of the produsst,

How the matier was addressed in our audie

Qur procadures related to the valuation of inventory

| Included:

L

* Azsessed the design and implamentation, and
tested \he operating effactivenass of the key controls
relating to the Group's processes over establishing
and ronitoring the impairment of inventaries.

+ Performed an overall raio and trend analysis to
assass the lewel of inwenbory  provision and
discussed with management any unusual trends or |
ratios.

* On a sample basis, tested the accuracy of the
historical data and age analysis of inventory used in
determination of the inventory allowance,

+ Evaluated the Group's policy for allowance for slow
moving  inventories. by performing  retrospective
testing, comparing hisiorical estmates with actual
resulls,

# 0Onasample basis, lested the net realsable value of
invendory item to recent selling prices,

= Altended inventory counds &t 8 sample of
warahouses alang with management where we
azsessed the daesign and implementation and
cparating effectiveness of key conirols over physical
imventary and also parformed samgle lest counts to
avaluate the complelensss and existence of
rmanagement's count rasults.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of Al Hassan Ghazi lbrahim Shaker Company (Continued)

Key Audit Matters [continued)

Impairment of irade recaivables

Kay audit matter

Az al 371 Dacember 2020, the Group's gross frade

rdllion) with an impairment less of SR 99 million (2079;
SR 81 milkan).

The Group Essesses al each reporting date whether
the trade receivables (camied al amortisad cost) are

credit-impaired, The Group’s management has appliad
a gimplified expected credit loss ("ECL") model i
determine the allowance for impairment of frade
receivables. The ECL model invalves the use of various
assumpbons, macre-gconomic factors and shedy of
historical trende relsting to the Group's trade
receivables colleclions expariance.

We considered this as a key audit matter as the
management  applies  significant  judgment  in
datermining an appropriate impairment loss allowance
for receivables,

raceivables balance was SR 454 million (2019: SR 463 |

Refer to note 2.2 for the accounting policy on rade receivables and note 6 for the trade receivables disclosurs.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Qur audit procedures relabed to impairment ksses
an frade recaivablas includad:

+ Aszsassed the design and implementation, and |
tested the operating effectiveness of the key |
conirols relating 1o the Group's processes over
establishing and moniaring the impairment,

» Tested key assumplions, including those used
o calulate the Mkelihood of default, by
comparng B0 historical data and challenged
these assumplions, We akso considersd fhe
incorporation  of forward  looking  macro
etonomic factors to reflec] the impact of fulure
events on expected credit losses, We also
lesled the arthmetical accuracy of the moded,

«Involved  ocur  specialist e review  the
methodology used in ECL model, and compared
this Against accepted best practica

» Azsessed the adequacy of the Group's
discloswres in terms of applicable accounting
standards,
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of Al Hassan Ghazi Ibrahim Shaker Company (Continued)

Kay Audit Matters (conlinwed)

Valuatian of equity accounted investees

Refer io Mote: 2.2 for the accaunting policy relating fo the equily accounted investees and nete 7 for the

equity accounied mvestess disclosure,

Hey audit matter
Az at 31 December 2020, tha camying value of equity
accounted investees amounted lo SAR 438 mllion
(2015: SAR 457 million),

The Group iz exposed to the sk of impairmend of its
equity-accounted investees. The Group's managament
considers whether there are indicators of impairment
wilh respact fo equity accounied investess and
conducts  it&  Enpairment test fo assess  the
recowverability of thesa investments using the value in
use model,  Impaemant  assessment of  these
invesiments requires significant judgment with respect
to future sales growlh and profitability of invesios,
cashflow projections and selection of appropriate
discaunt rate and there is a risk that the valuation of tha
assets and any related impairment charge may be
incoradt,

We considered equity accounted Investees impairmant
a5 a key audit matter due 1o the significant judgment
and assumplions ineolved in  the  impairment
AsLesEmMant process,

How the matter was addrassed in our audit

Our audit procedures related to the valuation of
2quily accountad investees included:

» Assessed the design and implemantation, and
fesled the operating effectiveness of the key
controls relating o Group's processes ovar
establishing and manitoring the impairmeant.

= LHilised our internal waluetions specialist 1o
assese the key assumplions wsed by
management in thair value-in-use caloulation,
including cash fiow projections and discaunt
rates,  Further, wa  2ssessed  the
reasonableness of significant management
azsumplions in respect of estimated fudura
cash flows, growth and discount rates and
performied a sensitivity analysis on these key
asswmptions.

» Compared management's assumplions and
applied ouw understanding of the fulurg
prospecis of the business from internal and
extermnal scurces, and compared the forecasts
1o higforical axperience,

» Azsessed the completeness and acouracy of
the information produced by management
which was used as the besis of their
assessmant.

disclosures in terms of applicable accounting

= Considered the adequacy of the Group's |
standards. J
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naependent Auditors Report

To the Shareholders of Al Hassan Ghagzi Ibrahim Shaker Company (Continuad)

Key Audil Matters (continued)

Refer to Mote: 2.2 for the accounting policy relating to revenue recognition and note: 20 for the retated
digclosures,

Kay audit matber
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group recognised total net revenue of SR 933
rrillion {2019; 5K 883 million),

Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains
control of the goods and this is done at a paint in
time i.e, on delivery and acknowledgment of goods
by the customer. Revenue is messured net of
discounts and rabates eamed by customers on the
Group's sales, The estimaton of discounts,
incentives and rebates recogrised based on sales
made during the year is material and / or considered
to b judgmantal. Therefore, there s &8 risk that
these arangements may not be appropriately
reflected and as a resull revenue may be misstatad
in the consolidated financial statements,

How the matter was addressad in our audit

We performed the following procedures related bo
ravenue recognition;

Revenue has been considered &g a key audil matier |

disi: to e above mentioned factors and the Group
consezers il as a key performancs measurns,

-

Considered the appropratensss of the Graup's
revenue recognilion accountng policies, imciuding
thosa relating to discounts, incentives and rebates
and asgesging compliance with the policies in lems
of applicable accounting standards.

Assessed the design and implementation, and tesbed
the operaling effectiveness of the Group's contrals
imcluding  anti-fraud controls over recogniion of
revenue a3 per Group's policy;

Aggessad sales transactions taking place at eiher
eide of the year &nd a5 wall as credit noles issued
afler the year end date o assess whether fhat
rervenus was recagnized in the comect pericd.

Wa also developed an expectation of the current yaar
revenue balance based on trand analysis information,
faking into account historical weekly sales and returns
information and our understanding of sach market,
We then compared this expectation to actual revenus
and, where relevant, completed further inguiries and
testing.

Compared current year rebate accruals to the prioe
vear and, where relevant, we completed further
inquiries and testing. We reconciled on & sample
basis claims and rebate accruals to supporting
documentation  and  challenged management's
aseumptions used in estimating rebate accruals.

‘ = Considerad the adequacy of the Group's discksuras

in terms of applicable accounting standards.
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naependent Auditors Peport

To the Shareholders of Al Hassan Ghazi lbrahim Shaker Company (Continued)

Kay Audit Matters (cantinued)

Hﬂfﬂr o Mote 2. 1|:t|] for basis of preparation of the consalidated financial stataments relating 1o gumg CONCET,

Slgnllh:-,ant knr audlt matier

— —_—

How the matier was addressed in our andit

The Group has r!L'II:II't'E-d a n=t profit of SR 10,1

million (2018: logs SR 50,9 million) for the year [
| concam included the evaluaton of:

ended 31 December 2020 and, as of that date,

Our procedures related to the audit of management's
assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going

repored accumulated losses of 3R 138.9 millkon, )
#* The process management followed 1o make its

The financial performance of the Group has | @SSessment

deteriorated in prior years dua to 8 decline in the |
sales  wolumes which has resulted in the
accumulated loss position. Also, during the yaar

The assumptions on which the assessmant is based,
including whether the assumplions
o are realistic and achievable in view of the Group's

global and local markets have baan adversey CircUmstances:
Mrpaced by ihe oulbreak of Coronavius (Covid- | are consistent with the genersl economic
18} This includes impacts to the supply chain anviranment:

customer base and the raalisability of certain

o fng inbermally consistent; and
assels,

o are consistent with other matters refating to the :
corsolidated financial statermen|s,

= Mamagement's plans for fulure action, and whethes
management’s plans  are feasible in the
tireumslances;

= The data used, including whether the data is relevant
to the assessment and from a reliable source;

The budgets and Torecasts for the period covered;

¢ The level of sensitivilies applied for reasonableness
biased on our knowledge of the businsss and markels
sarved,

# The termg af all Group's financing arrangaments,
inchuding both commitied and uncommitted facilities,
and assessed how these had been factered into the
lorecast models and the ability b comply with the debt
COVERans,

We inspected correspondence  with the lenders
concerning the key financial covenants, and any terms
attaching (including the parod coversd), and checked all
wara caplured appropriately within the model to test
conbinuing comgliance for the perod considered.

In the normal course of business, the Group
negoliales with tha banks to rensw and | ar
refinance its faciMies ag and when thay fall dus,
which are predominantly short term in nabureg,

We considersd this as a significanl key audit
matker as the management applies significant =
judgment in the assessmant of the Group's ability
o conlinue as a golng concenm,

We congidersd whethar mansgement's assessment
includes all relevant infeemation of which we are awars
&% a ressull of the awdit.

We also assessed the projections and assumptions by
refarance 1o cur knowledge of tha business and general
markel conditions and assessed he polental risk of
managament bias,

We also assessed {he going concern disclosurea for :
accuracy, including that sufficient details were provided
conceming the uncer@indias,
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NAependent Audicor's Repart

To the Shareholders of Al Hassan Ghazi ibrahim Shaker Company (Confinued)

Management 13 responsible for the oiher information, The sihar information comprises the information
included in the Group's annual report. but does nol include the conaclidated financial staternents and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Group’s annual report is expected to ba made avallable o us after the data of
this suditor’s repor.

Cur apinion on the consolidaled financial statements does not cover the olher information and we do nod and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion therson,

In connection with our audit of the conseldated financial statements, our respansgibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing 50, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statemants ee aur knowladge oidained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materally misstated.

When we read the annual repor, if we conchede that there is a material missiatemant thersin, we are required
to communicate the matter to those chargad with govemance.

sesponsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial slabemants
in accordance with Intérnational Financial Reporting Standards thal are endorsad in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by SOCPA, Company's By-laws and Requlations
for Companies and for such internal comrol as mansgemeant determines is necessary 1o enable the
preparation of consolidated financial stalementa that are free from materal misstatement, whether due to
frawud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial stalements, managemen is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue &s & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o going concerm and using
Ihe going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Growp or 1o cease
operations, of has no realistic allemative but 1o do 50,

Those charged with governance, the Board of Dissctors s responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
regporting process,

uditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Stalaments

Our objectives are to obtain reagonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial staterments 55 &
whale are free from material misstatement, whather due to fraud o error, and 1o issue an auditar's rapart thal
includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranca is & high level of assurance, bul is not a guarantes that an audit
conducted in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (1545) that are endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia will always detect a material misstalernent when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud
or error and are considerad material If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expeciad
1o influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of theses congolidated financlal statements.

As part of an audit in sccordance with International Standards on Auditing [15As) that are endorsad in the

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, we exercise profassional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throwghaut the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstaterment of the consolidated financial atatensenls, whether
due 1o fraud or emor, design and perform audit procedures rasponeive 1o those risks, and oblain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate o provide & basis Tor our opinion. The risk of no detecting a
material misstatament resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may imalve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the averride of internal cantrol

= Dblain an understanding of intemnal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are approprise in the circumstances, but nod for the purposs of EXpressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal contral,

==
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of Al Hassan Ghazi Ibrahim Shaker Company {Confinued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities fior the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statemenis [continued)

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
eslimates and related disclosures made by the managament.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
baged on the sudit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainly exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubl on the Group's abilily lo continue 28 a gairg cancem. If we condude that
a maternial uncerainly aasts, then we are required to draw atlention in our auditor's repord io the retated
disclosures in the consolidated financial statamenls or, if such disclosures ane inadequate, 1o modify our
opinicn. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's repor,
However, future events o conditions may cause the Group to cesse (o confinue a5 a going concerm.

» Evaluate the overall prasentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whather the congolidated financial statemenls represant the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

# Obtain sufficient appropriate sudit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or businass
aclivities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidaied financisl slaterments, We are
responsdble for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. Wa remain sodely
responsible for cur audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with gevermance regarding, amongst other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intermal control
thal we identify during our audit of Al Hassan Ghazi Ibrahim Shaker Company [“the Company®] and ils
subsitianies (collectivaly refared to as “the Group®),

We also provide those charged with govamance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationshigs and other mattars hat
may reasonabdy be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, relatad safeguards,

Fram the matters communicated with those charged with govamance, we delérmine those maters {hat were
af most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statemants of the curment pericd and ars
therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unlass law or riegulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or whan, in exiremely rare circumstances, we delermine thal a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse congsguencas of doing so would
reasonably be expected fo outweigh the public interest benefils of such communication.

For KPMG Professlonal Servicas

I'f - .__:I __.,-\.-",-.___H"_""-\n.
s __. IX’{}IPA, -.-u'_‘:“?-\'l

o iy, ‘.._#‘,f'___.-'
Khalil Ibrahim Al Sedais —
License Number, 371

Rivach, 28 March 2021
Corresponding fo 16 Sha'ban 1442H
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AL HASSAN GHAZI IERAHIM SHAKER COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A at 3] December 2020

iTn Thousands of Saudi Riyals, Unless Otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Mon- corrent assets
Property and equipment
Right of use assets

Intangible assets and goodwill
Trade and ather receivables
Equity accounted investee
Tatal non-current assets

Current nsseis

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Prepayments and advances
Cash and cash equivalemts
Total current asseis

Tutal nssets

EQUITY

Share capital

Stafutory rescrve

Accumulated losses

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Mon-controlling interests

Total couity

LIABILITIES
Mon=carrent liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Employee benefits

Lomg tenm pavables

Total nen=current liabilities

Current liabilities

Loans and bormowings

Trwde and ather payables

Zakat and foreign income tax liabilities
Frovisions

Total current labilities

Total linbilities

Totnl equity and Habilities

.
- B

—_

|

Nores

4.
4.7

E*ﬂah

)
L)

i1

i4
i5

i
i
i
A

" Abdulelah Abdullah Abunayyan
Chairman CED

Mohammed Ibralim Abunayyan

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
212,860 223 104
11,337 15,829
12,784 13,39
11,284 9,443
434, 586 457,128
681851 T1%,050
206,061 276,340
354,700 FR0.651
26,146 27,308
79,906 63,752
756,81 T48, 181
I,H!iﬂﬂ 1,467 271
630,000 630,000
144,937 140,537
(138930 (146,525
632,007 24012
20,519 19,933
652,526 643,945
109,936 95,975
25070 24,121
- 0% 000
135,006 215,094
278,228 302667
342,705 278,102
19,3710 15,691
11,529 11,770
652,132 AlE, 230
TET, 138 BI].EE
1,439 6if4 1467271
Huossam Al Akkad

VP - Finance




AL HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LO55 AND OTHER COMFPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year endecd 31 December 2020
{In Thousands of Saudi Riyals, Unless Otherwise stated)

31 December il December

MNeles 2020 2009
Revenuwe 20 Q3,600 REZRID
Cost of sales 2 (37,13 (7T17,176)
Gross profit 145,560 165544
Orther income 22 14,505 5968
Selling and distribution expenses 23 (95,56T) (104, 454)
Administrative expenses 24 (34,629) (87,393)
Impairment loss on trade recevables i (17,778} (18,214}
Operating profit / (loss) 12,091 (38,447
Finance costs 25 (18,Ta%) (29 302)
Oither expense — forcign exchange loss (2,200 -
Share of profit of equity -accounted invesiees, net of 1ax 7 26,458 L8071
Loss en disposal of egquity accounted investee =N (1,002%
Profit / (loss) before zakat and foreign income tax 16,874 (50,680,
Zakat and forcign income tax ¢xpense 7 i, T4 {180
Frofit / (loss) for the vear 10,134 (50,860}
Orther comprehensive loiss
Tremrs dlvat weill moe be reclassiffed fo proff or ok
Re-mensurement of the defimed benefit liabality i5 (1,553) (2,055}
Orther comprehensive loss for the period, nel of zakat and
forcign income fax 1,553 (2,055}
Taotal comprehensive income ! {loss) for the year 8,581 (52,915}
Profit | (loss] attributable to:
Cromers of the Company 9.537 (49,785}
MNon-controlling interests 307 (1,075}
10,134 (50,860}
Total comprehensive income [ {loss) attributable to:
Oweners of the Company 7,995 (51,649
Mon-controlling interests bt ] [1,266)

H,581 (52,915}

Enrnings / {loss) per share
Rasic and diluted eamings /{lozs) per share (SAR) 26 015 (0.75)

__-74/ __1._ -
e /44’4-5%
= =



AL HASSAN GHAXI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company}

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the vear ended 31 December 2020
{In Thovsands of Saudi Rivals, Unless Otherwise stated)

Aeteibitiatle fo the owners of the Comprany

Toval Non-
Share  Statwtory  (Accamulated shareholders” controlling
capital  Reserve losses) ity futeresy  Toral
Balance at 1 January 2020 GO0 140,937 [ 146,925) Gd. 012 19933 643,945
Tl comprehensive income
S tiee ypear
Frofit for the vear . - 9,537 9,537 EGT 10,134
Oither comprehensive loss - - (1,542) {1,542) (11  (1,553)
Balance at 31 December 2020 630,000 140,937 {138,930) 6327 0,519 651,516
Balance as at 31 December 2008 G30000 140,937 (93,956) 676,08 2,199 698,180
Adjustment on initial application of
IFRS 14 - - {1,320 {1,320} = (1,320
Balance at 1 Janyary 2019 630,000 140,937 (95,276) 675,66 21,199 696,860
Total comprehentive loss for the
Jear
Loss for the year - - (49, 785) (49.785) (1075} [(30,860)
Crher comprehensive loss - - {1,864 {186y (191} {2,055}
Balance at 31 December 3016 630,000 140,937 {146,923) 624,012 19,033 643,045

et
.
.1-ﬂf-.

T "
.E,. =7 = MZ

The notes 1 te 33 form an imtegral part of these consolidated financial statements.



AL HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(In Thousands of Saudi Riyals, Unless Otherwise stated)

31 December 31 Decembaer
Nate 2020 2019
Cash MNows fram eperating activities:
Profit / (loss) for the year 10,134 (50,8600
Adjustments For:
Diepreciation 4.1 12,354 14,732
Depreciation on RO 4.2 7,750 7,123
Amortisation k] hiz G13
Impairment losses on inventories 8 13,529 5,168
Impainment losses on receivables f 17,778 18,214
Share of profit of equity—accounted investees 7 [ 26,458) (18,071}
Lass on disposal of equity-accounted mvestment = L2
Gain on sale of property and equipment (35) (1,923)
Finance costs 25 18,769 20302
Emploves benefits expense 15 3424 1743
Zakat and foreign incoms tax i 6,740 | #ib
64,507 0223
Change in;
Inventorics (33,250) 100,564
Trade and other receivables 6,372 56,191
Prepayments and advances 1,252 1443
Trade and other payables (30,3497) 102,401
Pravisions 59 2. 140
Cash generated from operating activities 8,633 271,962
Finance costs paid (18,T64) (32,719
Lakat paid 7 (3061 (1 A16)
End of service benefits paid 15  (4028) (7.428)
Met cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (17,225) 230,399
Cash flows from investing activitics:
Acquisition of property and equipment 4.1 (1,920 (1,344
Proceeds from sale of equity-nocounted invesimeni = 1,721
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 4.4 is 2,172
Dividend received 7 49 HH} -
Met eash generated from investing activities 47.11% 2,546
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from loans and borrowings i4 B36.17H 755,804
Repayment of keans and bomewings 14 (H25,893) (9439781
Payment of lease liabilities {7.473) (7.998)
Mot eash generabted from [/ (used) in financing activities 1812 (191,885
Net ineresse in cash and cash equivalents 32,702 41,060
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January * A7, 204 £, 144
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December™ il T 906 47,204

* Cash and cash equivalents includes bank everdrafis that are repavable on demand and form an integral part of
thie Group's eash management.

Non cash iransactions

Dividend from associate settled through habality 49, (K]

- ,.r"'-- .
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HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1.1.

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

REFORTING EXNTITY

Ad Haszan Ghazi Tbrahim Shaker Company {the “Company” (o) the “Parent Compaiy™ (or “HGISC™) was
registered as a limited liabiliy Company in the Kingdom of Sawdi Acabia under Commercial Begrsimton
nuewber 1010148252 dated 26 Dhal Qadah 1418H {correspending 1w 25 March 1998). The Company
converted from a lisited lability company to a closed joim stock company purauant o the Ministerial
Resalation Mo, 275 on 17T Shabaan 1429H (corespanding to 18 August 2008).

The Parent Corpany edlered 1003 million shares 10 public, during the subseription penod from 26 April
2000 eorresponding to 11 Jumada Awal 1431H) o 2 May 2000 (eomresponding to 17 Jumasda Awal 143 1H)
The Parent Company™s shares started trading in the Stock Exchange on 17 May 20010 (comesponding to 3
Jumada Thani 1431H). Accordingly, after successful completion of the PO {Initial Public Offering
Process), the Parent Company was declared as a Sawdi Joint Stock Company with a share capital of SR 350
milllion, divided ate 35 mallion shores of SR 10 epch. On 29 March 2005, 0 bonus of four shares for every
five ordinary shares sutstamding was issued and resultantly the share capital of the Company was increased
from SR 350 million to SR 630 million.

The Parent Company is engaged in the trading and wholesale of spare parts, electronic eguipment,
hiowsehold equipment and air-conditioners, maintenance of the tems mentioned above and 10 provide
agency services for those companies which are in the same business,

The Comgpany's registered office s located at the following address: Shaker Group Building, Alsabafa
District, King Fahad Road, Riyadh 11422, Kingdom of Saudi Aralia.

The Group has brasches which are operating under separate conmmercial regrtrations. Details of these
branches are as follows:

Commercial
Branch location reglsiration Drate
HGISC - Pargnt Company
Buraidah BEILOERSS July 20, 199% | T Rabi” al-Thani 1420H)
Eharmis Mushait SR5502300] Agpril 13, 2005 (4 Rabi® al-Avwwal 1426H)
Elsohar 2051029431 May 2, 200 {13 Rabi' al-Awaal 142511
Jeddaly 4030102685 Apeil 3, 1994 (21 Shavwwal 1414 H)
Riyadh 1000137E34 June 23, HW3 (33 Rabi® al-Thani 1424H)
Riyadh 1007 1362 Apeil 20, 20004 (20 Jumada al-akhirb 1435H)
hadina AGSA 52 May 5, 2004 {15 Rabi® al-fowwal 1425 H)
Mecea 4031213336 March 20, 1018 (2 Rajab 14390

Ibrahim Shoker Compamy Limited — subsidiary

Jeddah 4030034475 May 10, 1982 (146 Rajab 1402H}

Eheobar 2051010124 July 14, 1984 {15 Shawwal 1404H)

Baha SE000201 62 July &, 2015 (19 Ramadhan 1436H)

Buraidah 1131020925 June 14, 2005 { T Jumsda al-Ula 1426H)
Elsaris Mushair SEER02TAY Jamuary 30, 2007 {11 Mubarram 1428H)
Majran SOOD]2R155 Movember 3, 2013 {29 Thul-Hijjah 1434H)
Rivadl 1010045129 June 7, 1982 (15 Shaban 1402 H)

Biyadh 10042442 March 14, 2006 (5 hemada al-Alkhimb 1427H)
Tabuk 35500396 T June 7, 1982 {15 Sha’ban 1402H)

Jeddah JOIG March 14, 2006 (5 Jumada al-Alkhimb 1437H)
Jeditah 40F2IERTH January 13, 20018 (27 Rabi™ al-Thoni 143%H)
Jizan SO0 1 20066 January 22,2018 (5 Jumada al-Ula 1439H)
Alhatouf 223005 Jamuary 31, 2008 {14 Jumada al-Ula [439H)
D 20301 1 544% Jamuary 30, 2018 {13 Jumada al-Ula 1439H)
Jeddah 40303453 June %, 1982 (16 Sho’ban 1402H)

Hofer Albatain 251 102664 January 3y, 2018 {13 Jumanda al-Ula [439H)
Yanbu 101367 1644 Drecember 2, 2020017 Rabi® al-Thani 1442H)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 Deceber 20200
1. REPORTING ENTITY (CONTINUED)
Commercial
Branch lecatiimn re athon Daie
Ikraliim Hussain Slkaker Projects and Maintenance Company Limited — subsidinry
Jeddak 40301535728 February 6, 2006 (7 Muhamam 142 TH)
Jeddah 40302E1R14 April 13, 20015 {24 Jumnada al-Alkhirah 1436H)
Riyalh 101434032 Juise 15, 2013 (28 Sha'kan [436H)
ASDAA Gull Trading Company - subsidiany
Rivadh PO T0245 1 5 Janupry 26, JEE (17 Mubamem 2008H)
1. These consalidated fisaineial scatements include the financial position and performonce of the Comipany and
its branchis as well as the following subsidiaries (eolbectively referred as the “Group™).
t irect subsidiarics
Principal feld Coundry of Effective ownership
Mame of activity incorporation  nferest at 31 December
oo 2019
Thrauhim Shaker {:'l,:-mp.any Wholesale of howehold  Sawdi Arabia TS | (e
Limited {“I15CL") appliznces
[srahim Husscin Shaker Imipert, export ard Sawdi Arabia M LM%
Projects and Mairtenance rsarkefing services
Company Linsited (“ITHSCL™)
ASDAA Gulf Trading Wholesale of electronic Sawdi Arabia MK 11
Comgpany {“ASDAA™ devices
Energy Management Services Energy solution Llnated Arah 4% T4%
Emirates LLC (“EME") providers Ermirates
{see below)
Mew Vision for Electronics and  lmport, export and Jordan 0l % 150G
Electrical Appliances raintenance of electrical
Company (“NVEEAC™) amed home appliances
Frincipul feld Country af Subsidiary ownership
™A of activity incorporation  inlerest @i 31 December
2020 2014
o
Energy Managerment Services Energy solution
Intermational (“EMSI™) providers Tordan LU 100%
Jemnain EMS Company LLC Energy solution Unired Arab
(“JECL™) providers Emirles 10, 101055
1.7.  These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Beard of Directors on 29 March 2021
(corresponding 1o 16 Bha‘ban 1442H).
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION ANIN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
21 Basis of preparation
ah Statement of compliange

These consolidated financial statements hove been prepared in accordance with Inle=rmational Fmancial
Reporing Standards s adopred in Saudi Arabia and odher standards and promouncements as endorsed by
SOCPA (“IFRSE"].
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUE)
Brasis of preparation {(continaed)

Basis of measurement

The consoludated financial satements have been prepared on o historcal oost basis excepl for the defined
benefin plan which is measured at present value of future obligations using Propected Unit Credit Method.
Further, the consolidated financial staterments are prepared using the accmnl basis of accounting and going
LONICETT concep.

The finencial performance of the Group has improved during the current vear due 1o increase in the sales
volumes amd other ousterity measures which has resulted in a profit and resultant decrease in the
acoumplated loss position. During the vear ended 31 December 2020 the Growp has reported a wotal
comprehensive income of SR 8.6 million {2009; total comprehensive bess of SR 529 million) and, as of
that date, reported accumulated losses of SR 138.9 million, Since the impact of the outhreak, 1the COVID
1% pandermic continues to evolve and, despite the global roll cut of vaccines meluding the Kingdem, there
gtill remains a difficuly in forecasting the full extent and duration of the economic impact of the pandemic,
The Group continues to manage its frading activities, sapply chain and collections of 18 receivables,
Manmagemen continues o expect o gradual improvement in i3 business activities based on the local
measures undertaken by te governnsent. Furiber, the Ciroup's ability w meet s obligations 2 they become
dwe, depends on its ability to manage the curment downtum in economc activities amd in subsequent periods
enhancement of 1% resulls amd cash Mows, contmued improvements i 115 working capital and the rencwal
o refinancing of loan Gacilines,

Inn assessing the going concern assumptions, the board has reviewed the base case plans for the future vears
along with the comparizon of budget with the actual for the current yeor, In the nommal course of business,
the Group zs and when foll dee negotiates with the banks to renew and ¢ or refinance its facilities. During
the twelve months period ended 31 December 2020, the Growp has seccessfully renewed its existing
Facilities which were due for renewnl, Additionally, subsequent to year end, the Group has also secured
new fagilities, The board continues 1o expect successful negodiations and continuity of facilities renewals
in future as well when required. In consideration of cash flows Forecasts, certain trading initistives e
imiproving sales volume, improved gross marging, acteal and continued working capital improvenents
coupled with cost cutting initiatives, the Group expects to moet its obligations as they beoome due in the
narmal cowrse of operation. Based on the factors as discussed above, the Group has a reassonabile expectation
that it will be able to operate as a going concemn For the foresceable future, Accordingly, the comsalidted
financial statemienls have been prepared umder the going coneem basis,

Functlonal and prescatation carreney

The consolidated financial siatements are presented in Saudy Rival (“5AR™) which 15 the functional
currency of the Parent Compaiy, and all values are rounded o the nearest thowsand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The censolidated fnancial stafements comprise the finoncial statements of the parent company and i

subsichiaries as o1 31 December 2020, Subsidiaries are entitizs which are controlled by the Group. Control

1% achieved when the Group 15 exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the

investee and has the ability to affect those retams through its power over the investes, Specifically, the

Ciroup comtrals an investes if and anby if the Group has:

= Poweer aver the investee (ie. existing rights thet give it the curment ability to direct the relevam activities
of the investee)

+ Exposure, or rights, o variahle retums from its involvement with the investes, and

+ The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its retums

When the Group has less than a majority of the veting or somlar nghts of an investee, the Growp considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investes, including;
*  The contractual arrangersent with the other vobe holders of the mvestes

+  Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
= The Group’s voting rights and potentiol voting rights
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Bask of preparation {continued)
dy  Basis of consolidation {eontinued)

The Group re-gasesses whether or nol il contrils an ivestee oF facts and cireumsiances mdicate that there
are changis to one or more of the three elements of control, Consaolidation of 0 subsidiary begins when the
Ciroup oblains comtrol ever the subsidiory and ceoses when the Group Joses control of the subsidiary. Assets,
labilities, mcome and expenses of & subsidiary acquired or disposed of f during the period are included in
the consolidated financial statements from the dote the Group gains control undil the date the Group coases
1o comirol the subsadiary,

Profit or loss and each companent of other comprehensive income (OCT are attributed to the equity holders
of the parent of the Group and to the non-conirelling interests, even if this rezults i the non=controlling
inberests having a deficit balance. 'When necessary, adjustments ane made o the financial statements of
subsidiaries 1o bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's accounting pelicies. All intra - group
azsets and lighilities, eguity, income. expenses and cash flows relating 1o rranssctions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsadiary, without a loss of controd, i3 accoumted for as an equity

transactzon. 17 the Group kases control aver a subsidiany, o

*  Derecognises the azses (including goodwall} amd Habilities of the subsidiary

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

Derecognises the cumulative iranslation differences recorded m equity

Recognises the Guar value of the consideration received

Recogmises the far value of any mvestmeni retmined

=  Recogmises any sunplus or deficit in consolidated statement of profit or loss

»  Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCT to consolidated statement
of profit or loss or retained camings, s oppropriate, a5 would be required if the Group had direcily
disposed of the related asseis or linbilities.

- - - L

2.2 Sigmificant accounting policies
aj NEW STANDARDS AND AMENDMENTS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
The below proncuncements are effective for annual periods beginnimg on or after 1 January 2021 ang eorlier

application is permitted, however, the Group has ot eardy adopled the sew or amended stamdards in preparing
these consolidated financial staternems. The impact of these standards are not expected 1o be material to the Group.

_ Effective daie MNew standards or amendments
I January 2021 fnterest Rate Benchmard Reform — Phase 2 fdmendments fo IFRE B, TAS 30, IFRS 7,
JFRE 4 and IFES 6 .
| January 2032 Chrerans Contracts — Crst of Fulfilling o Contrac
fdmerdnems to JAN 371

Al fmpravesrents o JFRES Suendards 7082020

.....

FProperty, Plawr and Equipment: Proceeds Before Inteaded Use (Amendments to TS
1

Reference to the Conceprual Framewank (Amendments 1o IFRS 3)

| .!al-'luar}' 2033 Claszificenon of Liabifites as Ciovent or Nor-current (Admendments fo FAS 1)

TFES 17 fesurmres Covitracts and amendments o (FRS 1T Insvrance fnr;rrﬂr.l,::

Available for opticisal Sale ow Comtribution of Axseis befwern an nvesior ard iis Axsociaie or Sainr Feiimre
adoption'effective date | fdoremadments to FFRE 10 g 145 280
deferred indefingely

I
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BASIS OF PREFPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEL)
Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Busimess combinations are sceounted for using the acquisition method when the contral is iransferred to
the Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aporegate of the consideration tramsferred which
is mweasured af acquisitien date fair value, and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the scquires.
For each business combination, the Growp elects whether 10 measure the non-contrelling imterest in the
acquiree either at fair value or al the properionate share of the acquiree’s wlentifinble et assets.
Acquisition-related eosts incurred are expensed as incurred and included in ndministrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it asesses the financial pssets and linhilities assumed For appropriate
classification and designation in sccordance with the comtrachal ferms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as al the soguisition date, This includes the separation of embedded denvatives in hast
cantragts by the neguires,

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the scquirer”s previously
heeld equity interest in the scquiree is remeasured to fair value at the scquisition date through conselidated
statement of profit or loss.

Ay contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. 17 an obligaton o pay
contingent consideration that meets the definition of a fnancial insrument i3 classified as equity, then it is
neod remeasured and setilement is accounted for within equiiy. Diherwise, sther contingent congpderation is
remeasured st fair valwe at cach reporting date asd subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

Croodwill is initially messured a1 cost (bemng the excess of the aggregate of the consideration tansforred
anwd the amount recognised for non-contrelling interest (NCL, and any previous interest beld, over the net
identifiable assets sequired and lizbilitses assumed), 1F the fair value of the net pssets acquired s in excess
of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-pssesses whether if has correctly identified all of
thie assets acquired and all of the labilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts to e recognised at the acquisition date. 1f the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets scguired over the aggregate consideration transfemred, then the gain is recognised in
comsalidated profit or loss.

Adter mitial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairmient losses. For the
purpose of impaimnent testing. poodwill acguired in 8 business combination is, from the scquisitien date,
alleeated to each of the Group’s cash-genesating units that are expected w benefit from the combination,
imespective of whether other assets or liabilitics of the seqguiree are assigned to those wirits.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit 15 disposed
of, the poodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included i the canying amoumt of the
aperation when determining the gain of loas on digposal. Goodwill desposed af i this cireumsionce is
mieasured based on ibe relative values of tee operation dizsposed of and the pertion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

]
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BASIS OF PREFPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Significant accounting policies (contimaed)

Investment in asseciabes and joint ventures

An associate 15 an enbity over which the Group has significant mfAvence. Significant mfluence is the power
tor participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the mvestes, huat i contral ar joing
cantrol over thoss policies,

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the amangement
have rights to the net assets of the jpint verare, Joint contrel is the contracually agreed shanng of contrel
of an arrangement, which exisis only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
cansent of the parties sharing contrel. The considerations made in determining significant infuence o joing
controls are simmilar to those necessary 1o determine control over subsidiaries.

The Croup's investments in s associate and joust vennes ane accoanted for using the equity methisd,

Under tlse equity method, the investrment in an associale or a joint veniure 18 inbially reooenises] ot cost,
The -:.'ar:_-.ring; amount of the investmen 15 adjuslull L reCpmeis ul'la.ng&x i the ﬂn‘mp'x share 1_1!'11-:1 HELT P
of the associale or joint venlure since the acquisiion date, Cusodwill relating o the associale ar joint venture
1% amchuded i the carryimg amount of the mvestment and s neather amortized, nor ibvidoally tested for
rmpairTmernl

The profit or loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the associabe or joint venbure,
Ay change in OfC1 of those investees is presented as part of the Group™s QCL In additbon, when there has
been o change recopnised directly in the equity of the associnte or joint ventare, the Group recognises it
share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity, [Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are climinated to the extent
of the interest in the associate or joint venture].

The aggrepaie of the Growp's share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face
of the statement of profit or loss owtside operating profit amd represcmts profit or loss after tax and non.
controlling intercats in the subsidiares of the associate o joinl venane.

The financial stateimenis of the associate or joint ventune are prepared for the same reporting perwsd as the
Ciroup, When necessary, adjustments are madde 1o bring the accouninmg policies m line with those of the
Cirowp,

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary 10 recogniss an
imparrenl boss onoits anvesimenl o RS associate or janl venture, At each reportmg date, the Group
determines whether there 15 objective evidence that the investment i the associabe or pant vendure is
impaires. If there s such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
bebween the recovernble amount of the psseciate or joint venture and its carrving value, then recognises the
loss as ‘Shore of profit of an pssocioie and a joint weniure” in the stalement of prefit or loss,

Llpon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint centrol over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any refained investment at its fair value, Any difference between the camrying
amaunt of the associate or print venture upon boss of significant influcice or joint control and the fair valuws
of the retained investment and proceeds from dispesal is recognised in prefit or loss.

Current versius aon-curvent classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial pesition based on current' non-current

classification. An asset is cursent when i is:

= Expected fo be realized oo mtendied 1o be sold or comsumed in the nomal ogerating aycle;

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Ii:l.vaL'I:-Ed 1o be realised within twelve months afer the n_-'pqrtini pl,:ril:u.l; or

«  Cash or cash equivalent unles restnicted from being exchanged or wsed to seitle a liability for at least
twelve maonths after the reporting period,
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BASIE OF PREFPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES (CONTINUED)
Significant accounting policies (continwed )

Current versus non-currvent classiftcation (continmed)

The Group classifies all other assets as non-current.

A liability is current whein:

= g expecied w be sertled in the nommal egerating cyele;

= liig held primanly for the purpose of rading;

#  Itig due 1o be setiled within twelve manths after the reporting perd; or

= There is no unconditional mght we deler the settllenmsent ol the habily Far al least twelve months afier the

repsrriing perosd.
The Giroup classities all other liahilities as non-cuarrent,

Fair value measurement
The Group mensures certain financial instruments and non-financial assets at fair valoe ot each balance
sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability inoan orderly
transaction between market participanis at the measurement date. The fair value measwrement is based on
the presumption that the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

= [Imthe principal market for the asset or lability, oi
= [ the absence of a prscipal market, in the most advantageous market for the asget or labiliy

The principal or the mest advamiageous markel must be accessble w by the Group. The Gbir value of an
assel or a lability is measured wsing the assumptions that market participants would wse when pricing the
AL O Ii&'l'ri“'l}'. aﬁﬁ.‘uming that rmarket parlu.'ipa.nl!x act in ther n;,:l:m-:u'r:ic hersl 1nleresl.

A Farr wvalug measurement of a men-financinl asset fmkes inke accound @ market participant's ability to
generate economic bemefits by wsing the asset in its highest and best wse or by selling it fo another market
participant that weuld use the asset moats highest anad best use,

The Group uses valuation techmigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are availoble to messure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use af unobservable inputs. All asseds and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are cabeporised within the fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, Based on ihe
lowwest lewel input that is significant to the fair valwe measuremsent as o whobe:

+  Level 1 - Croted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical azses or liahilites

#  Level 2 - Valuation wehniques for which the lowest level input that 8 significam to the fir value
mcasurciment is directly or indirectly observable

+  Level 3 - Valuation technigues for which the bowest level input that = significam we the Gar valoe
micasurerent is unobservable

Faor financial instruments guated in an active market, fair valoe i determined by reference b quoted marked
prices. Bul prices are wied for asets and offer pricis wre wseel for lnhilines, The fir vidue of investmenis
in mutual fumds, unit trusts or similar investment vehicles ore based on the last published net assets value.
For ungquoted financial mstruments fair value is determined by reference 1o the market value of a similar
investment, discounted cosh flows, other appropriate volwation models or brokers™ quobes,

For financial instruments carmied at amortised cost, the fair valug is estimated by discounting future cash
Hows ot the current market mbte of retwrn for similar financial mstnaments. For investments in egquity
instruments, where a reasonable estimate of fair value cannot be determined, the investment is carried a1
e,
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEDY
Sigmificant accounting pollcies (continued)
Fair valne measurement {continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financiol statements at fair value on a recurmmg basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-nssessing
catcgorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement as o whole)
at the cnd of each reporting period,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has deteemined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, charucteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained ahave,

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will Aow to the Group
andd the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the poyment is received. Bevenue i measured
at the Fair valwe of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account condractually defined terms
of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The Group has concluded that it is the principal in all ofits revenue
arrangements since il is the primary obligor o all the revenue arrongements, has pricing latitude, and s also
exposed o inventory and credin risks. The specific recognition criteria described below must alsa be met
before revenus is revognised.

Sirle af o

Revenue from the sabe of goods is recognised when o customer obtaing contrels of the goods sl a point in
time L.e. on delivery and acknowledgement of goods. Revenwe from the sale of goods s measured a1 the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of refuns and allowances, trade discounts and
volume rebates. The Group provides normal warranty provisions for general repairs for two to five years
o all its products sold, m line with industry practice. A liability for potential warranty claims is recopnised
at the time the product is sold. The Group docs not provide any extended warrantics or mainenance
CORIFACLS L 115 cuskmers,

Rendering of services

Revenue from service is recognized when obligation i performed or services are rendered, by reference 1o
the stage of completion, Stage of completion is measured by reference to nbour hours mcurred o date as a
percentage of fofal estimated labour bours for esch contragt, When the contragt owicome canmm be
miensured reliably, revenue is recognised only 10 the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible 1o be
recovered.

Frofesstonal considimney fees

The Group provides consultancy services for energy value analysis during the design phase of projects and
developments. Bevenue from consultancy services is recognised when the obligation is performed or
services have been rendered & per the ferms and condition of the respective customer coniracts

Crther income

Finanee deave imeonne
Finance lease income 15 allocated 1o accounting periods so as 1o reflect a constant periodic rate of refum on
the Group®s mel myvestment outstanding in respect of e leases,

Drvidends
Revenue is recognised when the Group's right o receive the payment is established, which is generally
when sharcholders approve the dividend.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AXD SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Significant acconnting pelicies (continued)

b

]

i

Contract balances

Cotenet @ssers

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customeer.
If the Groug performs by transfomring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
considesation or before payment is due, a confract asset is recopnised for the camed consideration that is
conditzonal.

i Cemidraned tahilities

A contract lability 15 the obligation 1o transfer goods or services 1o a costomar for which the Group has
received consuberation from the customer, 1T a customer pays consaderation before the Group ransfers
Eoils or services by the customern, 3 contract hability 15 recognized when the paymsent is made. Confract
linhilities are recognised a5 revene when the Group performs wnsder the contract,

Lakat and Taxation

Zakat and ingome bax

The Parent Company and domestic subsidiaries are subject to zakat in accordance wath the regulations of
General Authority for Zakat and Tax ("GAZTT) Forgign subsidiares are subject fo the relevant income ax
regulations in their countries of domicils, Group®s zakat and its share in the foreign subsadianies income tax
are pogmaed and charged to the conselidated statement of profit or less currently, Additional zakat and
foreign incorme tax liabilities, if any, related to prior years” assessments are accounted for in the period in
which the final asscssments are finalized.

Wirkeleodalineg rax
The Group witlthobds taxes on ransactions with non-resident parties in accordance with applicable GAZT
regulations,

Tavation on forcign subsidiaries

Tazation an foreign subsubiaries 5 cabeulated on tbe basis of the fax rates applicable and presenbed
accanting 10 the previaling laws, regulations and instructions of the countries where these subsidianes
operate. lcome ax payable on taxable profit {“cument ax") 18 recopnisad a8 an expense in the period in
which the profits anse in sccordance with the fecal regulations of the respective countries in which the
subsidinry opermies,

Forcign currency tramslafion

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in Saudi Rivals, which 15 also the poremt
company’s functiona] currency. For ench entity, the Group defermimes the functional currency and ilemns
included in the financiol statements of each enfily are messured wsing that fumchional cumrency,

Trnwacriors and balauces

Transactions in fercign currencies are initially recorded by the Group®s entities at their respective functional
curmeney spoet rabes af the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Moretary assets and liakilities
derominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional carrency spot rates of exchange at the
repoting date. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in peofic
or loss with the exception of menetary items that are designated as par of the hedge of the Growp's nen
investment in a foreign operation. These are recognised in OCT until the met invesiment is dispeged of, at
which Lirr!ru, the cumulative amoul 4 reclassifed w ]'rn_l-ﬁl! ar loss,

Mem=manetary iterms that are measured i tenms of histoncal cost in a foregn cumency ane rranslated using
the exchamge rabes ol the cates of the matial ransactons, Mon-monetary ems measured at Bair value in o
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates ot the date when the far value is determined, The
goin or kess ansing on transkation of non-moenetary ibems mensured ot fair value is treated m ling with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (e, franslation differences on items
whaose fair value pain or loss is recognised in OCT or profit or loss are olso recopnised in OCT or profit or
loss, Tespactively)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUELD)
Signilicant accounting policies (continwed})

Fﬂrv:lil.n currency translution (continued)

Gironp compuriles

O consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign opesations are translated o Sawdi rivals an the mse
af exchange prevailing al the reporting date and their inecane statement are ranslated al exchange rtes
peevailing at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differeinces arising on translation for consoldation
are recognised in OCL On disposal of a foreign operation On it entivety or partially such that control,
significant influence or joint control 15 lost, the component of OCT relating 1o that particular foreign
operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the goin or loss on dispesal, 1F the Group disposes of part
of its iverest in a subsidiary but relains control, then the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is
reattributed 1o NCL When the Group disposes of only part of an associate or jeint venture while retaining
significant influence or joint comirol, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified o
prafit ar loss.

Amy goodwill arising on the acquisition of a forcign ogeration and any fair value adjustments to the casrying
amounts of assets and liabilities armsing on the acquisition are treated as assets amd liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated an the spod rate of exclange at the reporting dabe,

Dividends om ordinary shares

[hvidends on ordimary shares are recognized as a lability and deducted from equity when they are approved
by the Parent Company®s sharcholders, Davidends for the year that are approved after the consolidated
statement of Mnancial pesition date are disclosed as an event aller the consolidated statement of financinl
position date,

Property and equipment

Property and equipmient are stated of cost Jess accumulated deprecistion and sccumulsted impainnent
hasses, When assets are sold or retired, i.e, when risks and rewards of cwmership are transterred to the buyer,
their cost and sccumulated depreciation ore eliminated from the accounts and any goin or boss resulling
from their dispesal is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. IF significont parts of an
itemn of property and equipment have different useful lives, then they are scoounted for as separate items
imajor compenents) of property and equipment.

Subsequent expenditune is capitalised only i it is probable that the future scomemic benefits associated with
thie expenditure will flow 1o the Group.

Land is not depreciabed. Depreciation is computed on a straighi-line basis 1o their residual values over the
catimated useful lives of property and equigment as follows and is recognised in consolidated siatement of
prafit ar loss:

Years
Huildings 40
Motor vehicles 5
Furniture and office equipment 667
Compurter Equipment 3
Tools and equipment 3
Lemschald improvements 66T

The useful life, resadual values and depreciation method are reviewed o each reporting date and adjusied
if appropriate to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consastent with the expected pattern
of economic benefits arising from items of property and equipment.
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HASIS OF PREFPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Sipnificant accounting policies (continued)
Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether & contract 15, or conlains, a leass, A coniract is, of
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the aght te control the use of on identified nsset for a period of Hime
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
wlentified asset. the Group asssses whether

the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this moy be specified explicithy or implicily and
should be physically distinet or represent substantially ol of the capacity of a pliysically distinet asset,
If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

the Ciroup has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throaghout the period of use; and

= the Ciroup has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Group has this vight when it kas the decision-

making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the aset i3 used, In rare
cases where the decision about how and for what purpese the asset is wsed is predetermined, the Group
has the right 1o direct the use of the asset iF eiter:

the Group has the right 1o operate the asset; o
the Group designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease linbility at the lese commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, andd subsequently ot cost less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment bosses, and adjusted for certam remensurements of the Tease lability,

The leaze liakiliny is imtally measured ot the present value of the lease payments that are not pad at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s imcremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rae.

The lease liability is subsequently incrensed by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease
payment made, It 15 remensured when there is a change v future lease payments ansing from a change in
an imdex or rate, & chonge in the estimate of the amount expected w be payable under a residual value
guarantee, o as appropriote, changes in the assessment of whether a purchase or extension optien is
reasonably cerfain to be exervised or a termination option 18 reasonally certaan mol 0 he exencizsed.

The Group has applied judgement to determine tee beage term for some lease contracts inwhich it is a lessee
that include renewal options. The assesament of whether the Group 15 reasonobly certain 1o exercise such
oplions impacts the lease term, which siguificandy affects the amount of Tease Tiabilities and right-of-use
aszels recognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Shgnificant accounting policies (conthnwed)

Borrowing costs

Bomownig costs directly atiributable to the acquisiton, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial peried of time 1o get ready For its intended wse or sake are capitalized as part
aof the cost of the respective assets. All other bomowing easts are expensed in the period they oceur,
Bomowmmg costs consisl of mlerest and other cosis that an entity inewrs i connection with the bomowima
af funds,

Intungiljl: LT R

Intamgible assets acouired separately are messured on mitial recognitien at cosl. The cost af intangible
assets noquired in a business combination 15 the fiir valee as at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recaognition, intangible assefs are carmed ot cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
imipairment losses. Intemally generoted intangible pssets, excluding capitalised development costs, are nod
copitalised and expenditure is reflected in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the peried in
which the expenditwre is incurred.

Licenses renowable at the end of the expiry perod at little or no eost to the Group are assumed 1o have
indefinite useful life. Amortization is computed on a straight-ling basis to their residual values over the
estumated weful lives rarging 9 to 10 years and i3 recognised in conselidated statement of profit or loss,

Iniangible assets with Gnive lives are amortised over the uweful economie life and assessed for impairment
whenever there 15 an indication that the 'irlla.ngl'l'.-lu asael may e ||1|pa:ir|.'r]. The amortidatian |}l."'l'i|:||.’|. resideal
value and the amortisstion method for an mitangible assel with a finne wseful ife are reviewed a1 least
each financial year end. Changes moibe expected useful life or the expected pattem of consumption of fulure
ecommie benefils embodied m the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation periad or method,
&s appropriate, amd are treafed 2= changes m accounting estimates, The amorisatim expense om mtngible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or less in the expense cofegory
consistent with the function of the intangible asset,

Infangible pssets with indefinite vseful lives are tested for impairment annally esther iedividually or ot the
cash generating unit level, Such intangibles are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed anmually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
suppertable. [Fnot, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite 1o finite is made on a prospective
basis,

Giaing or lesses avising from desecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal procesds amd the camryving amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Researoh and developmens cosis

Research costs are expensed as incurmed. Development expenditures o anoindividual propect ane recognised

as on intangible assed when the Group con demonstrbe;

* The fechnical feasibility of completing the intangible psset so that the asset will be avialable for wse or
sale;

+ [ts intemtion to complete and its ability ond intention to use or sell the asset;

+ How the assct will generate futurs economic benefits;

+ The availability of resources o complete the asset;

* The ability te measure reliably the expenditure duning development.

Followiing inital recagnition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carmied at cost less any
accumualated amortisation and acewmulated impairment losses. Amonisation of the asset beging when
developaseil 14 complete and the asset is available for use. [ amortised over the period of expected Mulure
beiefit. Amortisation is recorded in eost of sales. During the period of development, the asset is wsted for
imiparrment annually,
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BASLS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Sipgnificant aecounting policies (continwed}

Finangial instruments — initial recognition, subsequent measurement and derecognition

Finanginl nsseis

Inbtkal recognition and measurement

A finamcial asset (unless it is a rade receivable withowt a significant fimancing component that is initially
measured at the fransaction price) is initally measured an fair value plus, for on item not at FVYTPL,
transaction costs that are divectly atinbatable o s acguisition.

Classification and subsequent measurement

O initial recognition, financial assets are classified as measured ot amortized cost; Fair Value through
Oiher Comprehensive Income (FVOCT) - debt investment; FVOCUI - equity ivestment; or Fair Value
through Profit and Loss (FYTPLL

The classification of financial assets under IFRE ¥ iz generally bosed on the business mode] in which a
financial asset is maaged and its contractual cash flow chiractenstics

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it mests both of the fellowing conditions and is nat
designated as an

FWTPL:

= It 2 beld within a business mosdel whose objective is o hold asseis to collect contractual cash flows; and

- s contractual terms give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest an the principal amount outstanding.

A clebt invesimendt is measured at FYVOCT if it meets both of the following conditions and 15 nat designated
as

FVTFL:

- It is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by bath collecting confrctual cash flows
and selling financial assefs; and

- Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates w cash fows that are solkely pavments of princigal and
inberest on the principal amaunt cwtsianding.

Om imitial recognition of an equity tivestment that 15 not held I'|:|r1|_-.°||:|'i|'_||gI the Group may revocably elec
to present subsequent changes in the mvestment™s Fair value inOCL This election is made on an investinent-
by-ivestnent basis,

All financial assets nod classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOC] as described above are measured
al FWTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably
desagiate a financaal psset that otherwise meets the requirements te be measured al amortized cost or of
FYOCT as a1 FYTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
Hbserwee arise.

The subseguent measurement of financial assets depeinds on their classification, as described below;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financinl instruments — initial recognition, subdequent measarement and derecognition {continued)

Financinl assets (continael)

Classification and subsequent measurement {contimmed b

Financinl asseis ui
amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
mierest method, The amortized cost 18 reduced by impairment lessces. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains amd losses and impainnent are recognized
in conzalidated statement of profit or los. Ay gain or loss on derecognition
is recognized in conselidated stnterment of profit ar lass.

Financinl asseis ol
FVOCI -
Db investmenis

These assets are sibsequently measured st fair walue, Interest income
caleulated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange zains and
hixsses and pmpainment are recognized in consolidated statement of profit or
has, Oither net gaing and losses ase recognized in consolidated statemem of
other comprehensive  dncome. On derecognition,  gains  and  losses
aceumulated in consoludated staiement of other comprebensive income ane
reclassified to consoludated statermnent of profil o loas.

Financial assets al
FYOl -
Equity investments al

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Dividends are
recognized as mopme in consolidated staterment of profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represemts & recowvery of part of the cost of the Investment.
Chtlser met gains and losses are recognized in consolidated statement of other
comprebensive income awd are never reclassified 1o consolidoted statement
nmerﬁl L II.'I?E..

Financkal assets af
FYTPL

These assels are subsequently measured at fair value. Nel gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recogmized m consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable a part of a lnancial asset or part of & group of similar financial

assets) is primanly derecognised when:

®  The rights b receive cash Nows from the asset have expired; or

s The Group has teansfermed its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or hos assumed an obligation
1o pay the received cash flows i full witlour material delay 1o a thied party under a “pass-through’

armangement; and either:

i1 the Ciroup has iransferred sobstantially all the risks and rewards of the assed, or
i} the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred contral of the assel.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AXD SIGKIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUELD)
Slgnificant acconnting policies (continuned)

Finameial instruments — initial recognition, subsequent measurement and derccognition {continned)
Financial assets (continued)

Davpairavent of finamcial assets

The Growp recognizes a losa allowance for expected credin losses (ECL)Y on debt instraments that are
measured &t amortized eest ar at FVOCL secounts receivable and financial guarentee condracts. Mo
impatrment lods 15 recognized for vestiments in equity instraments. The amount of expected credit losses
rellects changes oy cradit fsk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group applies the simphified approach to caleulate impaiomsent on accounts receivable and this always
recognizes lifetime BCL on such exposures, ECL on these fnancial assets are estimated wsing a flow rawe
bosed en the Group™s historicnl credit loss experience, adjusted for factors thal are specific o the deblors,
general economic conditions and an assessmend af bath the curment & well as the forecast divection of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financiol instruments, the Group applics the general approsch te calculate impaimment,
Lifetime ECL is recognized when there has been a significant incrense in credit risk sinee mitial recognition
and 12 month ECL is recognized when the credit sk on the financial instrument has not incrensed
significantly since initial recognition,

The assessment of whether credit risk of the financial instrumient has increased significantly since initial
recogition is made through considering the change in risk of default occurring over the remaining life of
the financial instrunsent.

In aszessing whether the credit sk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recogrmition, the Ciroup conpares the fisk of a defaul gccwrring on the fnancial instrument s af the end of
the reporting period with the risk of & default occurning on the financial instrument as at ihe date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group consuders both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonahle and supportable, mcluding historical experience and forward - beoking information that is
avimlable,

The Growp conswders the defaalt in case of wade receivables ocours when a customer balance moves into
the “Inpctive” cabegory based on its debt age analysis.

For all other financial assets, the Group considers the following as constituting an cvent of default a3

historical experience indicates thal receivables that meet enher of the following criteria are generally nol

recovernble,

- when there is 0 breach of financinl covenants by the counterparty; or

- information developed infernally or obtained from external seurces indicates that the debior is unlikely by
pay his dues,
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BASIS OF PREFARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Slgnificant accounting policies (cantinuwed)
Financial instruments — initial recognition, subsequent measarement and derecognition (oontinued)

Financial assets (continmed)

Tovpalrment of Anamcial assets (continged)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial instroment has not increased significantly since initial
recegmition if the financiol instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined 1o have ow credit risk if; i) the financial instrument has & low rigk of default, 1)
the borrewer hos o strong capacity to mect its contractual cash fow obligations in the near term and in)
ndverse changes in economic and business comnditions in the lenger term may, but will nol necessorily,
reclace the ability of the borower to fulfill its contraciual eash Mow obligations,

The measurement of expecied credii losses s a fusction of the probalality of default, loss given default {ie.
the percentage of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default is based on historcal data adjusted by forward =loosking ifermation,

The Growp recognizes an impairment loss or reversals in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. for all
financial instruments with & comesponding adjustment te their cormying amound through a loss allowance
account, excepl for investments i debt instruments that ore measured at FYOCI, for which the loss
allowance i recognized i consolulated statement of comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, amnd does m reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset m the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For financial agss not classafied st for value through profit or loss, the Group assesses a1 each reporting
date whether there is any objective evedence that such financial asset or 0 group of financial asscis is
impaired. & financial asset or a group of finemcial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impainment as a reselt of one or moere events that has or have oceuarred after the indial
recogrition of the assel and a loss event has an impac on the estimated future cash Nows of the financial
asget or the CGiroup of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that debtors or a Group of debtors are experiencing
sigmificant finameial difficulty, default or delinguency in principal payments, the probability thar they will
enter inlo bankrupicy or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicates thar there is a
mensurnble decrease in the estimated future cash flows. such as changes i arears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults,

Financiel assers carvied af amortized cost

For financial assets caried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses whether bnpairment exists
imhividalily for financial ossels that are individwally significant. [T the Group determines that no objective
evibence of impoinment exists for an individually assessedd financial asser, whether significant or nod, i
meludes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit visk charactenistics and collestively
nssesses them for impaiment. Assets ihat are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or contimnees o be, recognized are set included ina collective assessment of impairment,

Thee amaunt of any impairment boss identified is measuned as the difference between the asset’s carmying
ameount and the present value of estimated futire cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that
have ot yet been incurred). The present value of the estmated fulire cash flows is discounted at the
fiancial asset’s original effective mierest rave,

The carrying amount of the aset s neduced through the vse of an pllowsnee account and the los is
recognized in consolidated siatement of profit or loss, Interest income {recorded as finance income in the
comsoladated staterment of profit or loss) continues to be accrued on the reduced camying amount and 15
accruwed using the e of imterest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measunng the
imparment loss,
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BASIS OF FREFARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES (CONTINUED)
Signilicant accounting policies (comfinaed)

Finamcial instruments - initial recogaition, subsequent measarement and derecognition (continmed)
Financinl assels (continmed)

Dimpairment of lnancial assels (continwed)

Loans tegethes with the associated allowanee are written off when there is no realistic prospect of fulure
recovery and all collateral has been sealized or has boen transfemed to the Growp. If, in a subsequent vear,
the anscunt of the estimated impaicment logs mcreases or decreases because of an event occurring alter the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impaimmient loss is increased o reduced by adjusting
the allowance aceount, 1M write=aiT 1% later recovered, the recovery s credited w0 general and admimistrative
in the consolidated stavermen of profil or loss,

Financial liabilitkes

Rocogniiion aud measirement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition. as measured at amontized cost or fianeial labilines
at Fair value through profit or kess. All financial liabilities other than fisaiscial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recopnized initially at fair value net of directly attributable transaction costs. Financial
liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss are measuned mitially and subsequently at fair value, aml oy
related ransaction costs ane are recognized in consolidared statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Invemtories

Inventarees are stated @t the bvwer of cost amd net realisahbe valee, Costs ane those expenges mesrmed in
bringing each product 1o 5z present bocation and condition and are determined on the weighted avernge
basas, Met reahsable value 15 based on estimated selling price in the ordmary course of the business, less
any further costs expected to be incurred on completion and disposal

Impairment of non=finuncinl asseis

The Group assesses ot ench reporting date whether there is an indication that an nsset may be impaired. 1F
any mehication exists, or when annual impaimmient testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the
assel’s recoverable amount, An assef’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-gencrating
unit's (CGLTY fair valee less costs to sel] ond its value inuse and is determined for an individual assed. unless
the nsset dogs nod generate cosh inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of asscts. Where the camrying amount of an assed or OGU exceeds its recoverable amound. the asset i3
considered impaired and is written dowin ta its recoverable amount. [n assessing value in use, the estivnated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value wusing a pre-tas discount rate that reflects current
miarked assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific o the asset. In determining fair value
leas costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. I no swch ransactions can
be wentified, an appropriate valuation model s vsed. These calculations are comoborated by valuation
mltiples, guoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value ind lcators,

The Group bases os impaimment caleulation on detmled budgets and forecast caleulations which are
peepared separately for each of the Group's cash-generating units w which the ixlividual assets ore
allocated. These hisdgets and forecast calculations are generally covening a period of live years, For longer
periads, a long term growth rate 15 caleulated and applied 1o project futare cash flows after the fifih vear,

Impairment lusses of continuing operations are recopnised in the conselidated statement of profit or loss,
except for o property previowsly revalued where the revaluation was faken 1o other comprehensive income.
In thas cose, the mpairment is also recopnised in olher comprehensive inceme up b the amount of any
previous revaluation, I'mpainment losses are allocated first to reduce the camying amount of any goodwill
allecated 1o the CGLU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other asseds in the OGL on a pro rata
basis.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Significant accounting poliches (contlnwed)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continuned)

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date 1o determing whether there is
an indication that previeusly recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decrensed. IF such
indication exists, the Group estimates the asset™s or CGUs recoverable omount, A previously recoginized
impairment loss is reversed only if teere has been a change in the assumplions used to determine the assen’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carmying amownt that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, bhad no impainment loss been recognised
for the assel in prior years, Such reversal i recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Ciopdwill s tested for impairment anmually and when circumstances indicate that the canying value may
be impaired

Cioadwill anising from o busingss combination is allocated 1w CGUS or groups of CGUs thal are expected
o benefit from the synergies of the combination. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the
recoverable amaonnt of each COU (or group of CGUS) o which the goodwill relates, When the recoverable
amewnt of the CGLU is less than is carrying amount, an impairment loss 15 recognissd, Impairment losses
relating to goodwill canmet be reversed in futune perods,

Infangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually and when circumstances
indicate that the carmying value may be impazred,

Cash and eash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolulated cash flow sintement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash and bank
balances, deposits amd other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 1o known
amounts of cash with eriginal matnties up to three months from the date of acquisition and that are subject
to an insigaificant nsk of change in value

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 2
past event, i 15 probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o
settle the obligation and o reliable estimate can be made of the amount of te obligation. When the Group
expects some or all of o provision 1o be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract. the
reimbursement is recognised as p separate assct, but only when the reimbursement s virtually certnin, The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the income siatement net of any resmbursement,

If the cffect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting expected
future cash flows using a curment pre-tax rate that reflects, when approprinte, current market assessments of
timee value of money and the visks specific v the lability, The unwinding of the discount is recognised a
finance oost

Wrreinry provisions

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the prosduct is seld or service provided 1o the
customer. Initial recognition is based on historical experience, The initial estimate of warranty-related costs
is reviewed anmually, The Group provides normal warranty provisions for general repairs for pae o five
years on all us products seld, in line with indwstry practice. A liability for potential warranly clams is
recagnised at the time the prodect is sold. The Group does not provide any exiended warmntics or
mainkEnance Contrcts b its SuEstomers,

Employers enid of service hencfits

Provision is masle for smounts payable to employees under the Saudi Labour Law, employee contracts and
applicable labour lows in dhe countries where the subsidianes operate. This Habality, which 15 unfunded,
represents the amount payable to cach ermployves on a gedng concern basis,

The Group provides end of service benefits w employees. These benelits are unfunded. The cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method a5 amended by [AS 19,

a0
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AL HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY
1A Smedi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Fer the year ended 31 December 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Signilicant accounting pelicies (continged)
Employees end of service benefits (vontinued)

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
incladed i neet interest on the net defined Benefit liability and the rebam on plan assets (excloding amounis
imgluded in net interest on the ned defined benefit liability ), are recognised immediately in the statement of
financial position with & cormespending debit or credit 1o retained camings through OCH in the period in
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Pastl service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the carlier of
+  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
+  The date that the Group recognises related restructuning costs

Met intereat is calculaved by applying the discount rve e the net defined benefit hability or asset, The

Group fecogiised the following chanpes m the net defined benefit oblgation amber “cost of sales”,

‘administration expenses” and “selling and distribution expenses” in the consolidated income statement by

function:

= Bervice cosls comprsing current service costs, past-service costs, gaims and losses on curtailments
amdl nem=routing setlements

= Met inberest expense oF income

Sepment informuation

A sagment is o distinguishable component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
earns revenue and incurs costs, The operating scpments are used by the managemen of the Group 1o
allocates resources and assess performance. (perating segmenis exhibiting similar economic charceristics,
product and services, ¢lass of customers where appropriate are aggrepated and reporied as reporiable
SEEMEnis,

Contingentles
Contingent liabiliics are not recognised in the consolidated financial statemenis, but are disclosed unless
the possibility of an owtflow of resources embadyime ecoremic benefils s remote,

Contingent assefs are nod recognised in the consolidated financial statements, but are disclosed when an
inflow of cconomic benefits is probable,

Finance income and finance cost

Thee Group®s finance income ond finance costs include:

* finance income:

* finance cosl:

* dividend income;

* the foreign currency gains or loss on fnancial assels and fmancial labiliges;

* the gain on the re-messurement to fair value of any pre-existing infersst in an acguiree im g business
combination,

* impairment bosses recognised on financial assets (other than trade receivables);

* the net gain or kess on hedging instramsents that are recognised in profit or loss; aned

* the reclassification of net gains previeusly recognised in OCL.

[nferest income o expense is recopnised using the effective interest method. Dividend sscome i recognissd
in prafit or loss on the dabe on which the Growp's nght 1o receive payment (3 establshed.

Oiperating profit

Omperating profit is the pesult genesated from the continuing prneipal revenue producing activities of the
Ciroup as well as other income and expenses related 1o operating activities, Operating profit excludes net
finance costs, share of profit ol equity aceounted investees and income axes,

i




AL HASSAN GHALL IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY
1A Sauvdi Joim Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINARNCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 20

SIGEIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

Use of estimates and judgements:

The preparation of consolidated financial siatements reguires management 10 make judgment, estimales
and assumiptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilites, moome
and expenses. Actual results may differ From these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumplions are
reviewed an an ongoing basis. Revisions fo accounting estimates are recopnized in the perisd in which the
eativsates are revised and in future periods affected.

Judgements:

Infermation about _'iLI.i]H«I.'mI:ﬂI'.'I made m app|}'i|1g acoounlimg pnlp;ii:s that have the most sia,ni'l":u;:lnl effects on
the ainount m‘:'rglliﬂ'd it the eonselidated fnancal satements 1% meluded i the Hun]tc_rwing niies;

= Made 1.6 - comsolidation: whether the Eimup has de facto control over an invees,

Estimation uncertainty and assumplions:

The kew assumptions conceming the future and ather key sources of estimation uncertaimdy of the reporting
date, that have a sigmficant risk of cousing a material adjustment fo the comrying smounts of assces ad
labilities within the next financinl vear are discussed below:

Tmpairmenyt of invendories (nade 8)

Fvendaries are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When inventories hecome old or obselete,
an estimate is made of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts this cstimatson s
performed on an individeal basis. Amounts which are not individoally significant, but which are old or
absolete, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according b the inventory tvpe and the degree
of ageing or obselescence, based on historical selling prices.

Deparbraent of trale cond onhier peceivaldes finote 6}
The Group uses a provision matis @ caleulae ECLs for issle recervables.

The provision mairix is initially based on the Group™s hstoneal observed default rmtes, The Group will
calibrate the matwix o adjust the historical credit loss expenence with forwand-lovkimg information. At
every repariing date, the histoncal observesd definlt rmtes are updated and changes in the forward-looking

ealimales ang unal:.':-mL

The assessment of the comelation between historical observed default rates, forecast ecomomic conditions
angl ECLs 15 o sygmificant estimate, The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of
fiwecast econcmic condifions,

Tpairment of non-fingencial asseis mode 5§ & 7}

Imipmirment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amound, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of dispesal and its value in use. The fair value less
casts of disposal calenlation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at ann's
length. for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental cosis of disposing of the asset, The
vitlue inuse calculation is based on a discounted cash Now (DCF) model. The cash fows ane derived from
the budget for the next five vears and do ool melude restructuring sctivities that the Giroup 15 not vet
commmitted to or significant fubare mvestrents that will enbanee e performaice of the asses of the CGU
bizimg tested. The recoverable amount 5 seagitive o the dizcount rate wsed Foe the DCF mode) as well as
thee expected future cash-inflows and e growth rate used for extrapolaon purposes, These estimates ane
imoal relevant to goodwill ard ather miangibles with indefimite weful hves recogmsad by the Group.

Warrarty faofe T8

Provisions For warranty i recorded based on on estimate and the acteal cost and timing of future cash flows
are dependent on fudure events, The difference betwsen expectation ond the scteal fulure liability is
accounted for in the period when such determination is made,

Custamer rehites

Accounting for the amaount and timing of recognition of customer rebate require the exercise of judgesmen,
The rebate relates to the customers for achieving agreed purchase or sales targets within a set period. Where
rebate span different accounting periods, the amount recopnised in each period is estivsated based on the
probability that the customess will meet contracial fasget volumes based on historical and forecast
perfonmance.
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AL HASSAN GHAZL IBREAHIM SHAKER COMPANY
1A Sawdi Joint Stock Compaiy §

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANUIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(In Thousamds of Sauch Riyals, Unless Otherwise stated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Estimation wneertainty and assumptions: (continwed )

Emplavee enefits (rove 152

The cost of end of service benefit plans and the present value of end of service benefit obligation are
determined wsing actuarial valustions. An actuarial valuation involves muking various assumptions whicl
may differ firom actual developments in the future, These inclwde the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases, mortaliny rates and future pension mereases, Due o the complexity of the valuation,
the underlying assumptions and its Jong<tevm mature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive w
changes in these assumptions, All assumptions are reviewsd ot each reporting date.

L devermining the appropriate discount rafe, management considers the inferest rates of corporate bonds in
the respective currency with at least AA rating, with extrapolated maturities cormespoiding to the expected
duration of the defined benefit obligation. The underlving baonds are furtber reviewed For quality, and those
having excessive credit spreads are removed from the population of bonds on which the discount rafe is
basexl, on the basis that they do not represent high quality bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for specific countries. There are no
puhlidy nvoilable :I'I'Il:ll‘l.‘El”l::r' tablea for the Epﬂuirm COUIry. Future salary mereases amd 'pmsium IMCICASES
are based on expected future inflation rates and the management owtlook for the respective country,

13
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AL HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY
(A Savdi Joim Siock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 20240
In Thousands of Saudi Riyals, Unless Otherwise stated)

4.1

rn

5.1

Hight of use of assets

Kighi of wse of asseis

31 December 31 Drecember
2o 2019
Balance ar 1 January 15.82% 11,338
Adlditions for the year 3,258 1616
Depreciatien charge during the vear (7,730 (7.123)
Balance at end of year 11,337 15,829
Amount recognised in consalidated statement of profit or loss and OC]
31 December 31 December
I 2019
Interest om lease labilines THZ 1,02k
INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL
31 December 3 December
2020 2014
- Intangible assets (More 5.5)
Encrgy Management Services Emirates LLC 1,652 2 il
Mew Vision for Electronics and Electnical Applinees Company 1,278 1,478
La30 3,542
- Gooawill iNeres 5.0 & 5.20
ASDA A Gulf Trading Company {ASDAL) 9.854 G R5d
12,784 13,3546

Effective 12 Movember 2014, HGISC sequired effectively 100% sharcholbding in ASDAA for a purchase
consideration of 3R 20 millicn, which was in excess of the fair valee of the sel assets acquined by SB 9.9

rillion and has been recorded as goodwill.

Reconciliation of the carrving amownt 15 as under;

Totangible
Sy Gopdwill Lotal

Cost
A at 1 Jamuary 2009 3,574 RS54 15428
Adiditrons - N =
As at 31 December 2019 5574 k54 15,425
Additions - -
As al 31 December 2020 5574 B854 15418
Accumualated amoriisation:
As at 1 January 20019 1419 1419
Charge for the vear 6l3 411
As ot 31 December 20019 203z 2032
Charge for the vear all 62
As al 31 December 2020 1644 20044
MNet carrying amount:
As at 31 December 2020 193 U R54 12,784
A ab 31 Decembser 2009 1,542 R34 13,3%:

3



AL HASSAN GHAZT IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Sdock Company)

HOTES TOTHE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 1] December 20
i(In Thousambs of Sauch Bivals, Unless (therwise stted)

INTAMGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWITLL (CONTINUED)

Croodwill — ASDAA Gulf Trading Compainy;
The recoverable amount of this CGL is estimated using disecounted cash fows.

The key assumptions used in the estimatien of the recoverable amount are sef out below, The values
assipned to the key assumpiions represent mansgement’s assessment of future trends o the relevant
industries and have been based an historical dato from both external ond internal sources,

20z 2019
Diiscount rate 123% 12.6%
Terminal valie grovwth rate 246% 20
Budgeted ERITDA growth rate (average of next five years) 15% 1

The discount rale was a post-tax measure estimated based on the histerical industry  average
weighted-nverage cost of capital.

The cash flow projections incladed specific estirsates for five years and a termiisal growth rate thereafier.
The terminal growth rate was determined based on management's estimate of the leag-term compound
annual EBITDA growth rate, consistent with the assumptions that a market participan would make,

Budgeted ERBITDA was estimated taking indo nccount past experience, Revenue prowth was projecied
taking into account the average growth levels experienced over the past five years and the estimated sales
volume and price growth for the next five years, It was assumed that the sales price would increase in line
with forecast inflation over the mext five years,

The estimated recoverable amount of the OGL exceeded it casrying value by SAR 34 million (2019 SAR
13.21 million).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVARLES
X December 31 December

2020 2019
Trade receivahles 451,584 462 968
Less: Impairment losses on trade recevables (#H,T51) [E0,973)
LEDE. LE] 381,995

Cther recervables:
Advertisement claims from suppliers fi, K2 4.60]
Custom duly deposit 5,956 3056
Amount due from related parties - 255
Mom trade receivables 4,169 1283
Imipairment losses on other receivobles . {5,956} _ 45.056)
365984 390,134
Current 354,700 380,691
Mon-current 11,284 0443
65,954 00,034

Becoe leation of i.1|1|,‘|a|rrn|='r|.'l losaes om recervables = as ﬁ1||-;_|w.'
31 December 3 December

20120 0%
Balanes at beginning of year Ro. 024 GETIS
Charge for the year 17,778 18214
Balance an end of year 104,707 Wi,

The group from tinse (o time is iovelved in lawsails for the recovery of certain of 13 trade receivahble
balances. The Groug is currently invelved in litigation against one of i1s customwers in respect of a long
outstanding receivable of SR 3T million. During January 2021, the Commercial Count made a ruling against
the Groug in relation to this claim. On % March 2021, an appeal has been fAled by the Group which will be
heard by the President of the Commercial Court. The management and legal counsel, based om the current
circumstances, expect a favorable outcome an the above case and also in relation 1o all ether significant
pencing litigations for balances included within net trade receivables, Where appropriabe, management has
assessed the status of all such lowsuits and recorded an approprinte level of provisioning as part of its ECL
provision as at 31 December 2020,

£




AL HASEAN GHAZI IRRAHIV SHAKER COMPANY

(A Smadh Joand Stock L';:lmp:ln:.']

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

iIn Thousands of Sawdi Rivals, Unless Otherwise stated)

7.1

EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEE

The details of the Group's equity accounted investes is as follows:

Coentry wf
Nuare of Company Principal activities Taearperaiion Effective intevess ay
A Deecember 31 December
1P 1] 2004
LG Shaker Company Mlanufaciure of air
Limited (“LG Sleaker™) coditioners Sawdi Arabia 49% diy
Investments in equity accounted investes is as follows:
3l December 51 December
20Z0 20019
LG Shaker fhowe 7.0 434586 457,128
434,586 457128
Reconciliations for the equity accounted investes are as follows:
Lo Shaber
Al 1 Janwary 20240 457,128
Share of profii for ihe vear 458
Drividend (49,11}
At 31 December 2020 434, 580
LT Stherker SEALCD Total
At | January 2009 488057 2,715 ) TH2
Share of profit for the year 18,071 - LRAT
Disposal of investment - {2, T35} (2,725)
Dividand (449,000} - (49 (0100
A1 31 December 20019 457,128 457,128

Ao dividend of SR 49 million was received by the Group on 19 Novernber 2020 (20192 the divadend of SR

4% millien was sel off against amounts pavable to LG Shaker).
LG Shaker

LG Shaker s a mixed limited lability company registered in KSA under the commercial registration
number 1010226606 Dated 4 Dhul Hijjah [427TH (corresponding o 25 December 2006). The prncipal
activity of the Company s to manufacture various types of air condifioners,

The following fnble summarises ihe financial information of 0 material nssociate - LG Shaker as included
in it2 own financial siatements. The table alse reconciles the summanised financial information 1@ the

carrying amount of the Group's interest i the associate.

Halonce ay av:

Mon-current asseis
Curvent assels
Men=current liahdlities
Curcent liabiluies

Mel assels (100%)

Group's share of net assets (49%)
Goadwill
Carreving amount of Interest in assoclate

J1 December 31 Drecember
20240 2019

W 130 144 417

240 W)X 268913
(78000 (63007
[lim.506) (B2 50
234,752 284,080
122,002 145,144
111,984 311,954
434,586 487,128

38



AL HASSAN GHAZT IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY
(A Saudi Joamt Steck Contpany)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 Docembser 20240
(I Thousands of Sawdi Riyals, Unless Otherwise stated)

al

b)

EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEE (CONTINUED)

H December 3] December

2020 2019
Revenue 31R.618 285,204
Total comprehensive incame {10004) al,652 35578
Cirpup share of wotal comprehengive moome {(49%) o A58 18,071

The recoverable amount of this equity-accounted investee is estimated using discounted cash Bows. The
Tair value messurcment was categorized as a level 3 Fair valwe based on the inputs in the valuation technigue
used.

The key assumptions used in the estmmation of the recoverable amount ane w21 out below. The values
assigned to the key assumpions represent management™s assessment of future trends o the relevant
industrees and have been based on histoneal data from both extermal and miernal sources.

2020 2019
Dhscount rabe 13.5% 14.2%
Terminal valwee growth rake 2.6% 2.0
Budgeied EBITDA growth rate (average of mext five yearsh %% 190,

The managenent of the Groug has assessed in deail the carying walue of LG Shaker as at 31 December
2020, These were based on certain detailed assumplions and management plans. Manageiment expect these
plans comtinwe 1o support the carrying valee ol the investee, alihowgh thes will be dependeint on the sucoess
af the plans and the continwed improvesment i the wider economie conditions i Saedi Arabia. Manogemenl
will comtmue b maniar the detaled :msllrnplinns Hg:lllr_:.l lhl.:s-: plans im thear Flllun: irrnpa'mnunt TEVIEWE,

INVENTORIES
3 December il December
FIEd] Huig
Finished goods 144,515 2%
Spare parts his, 450 T4.211
Cioodds in transit i, 90 28,5604
337875 104,793
Imipmitment losses on inventaries 41,814y _ (28.451)
296,061 2T, 340

Reconciliation of the mmpairment lostes on inventories 15 as follows:
31 December il December

2020 019
Halance a1 beginnimg of year 2R.453 37,584
Charge for the vear (nofe 21) 13,529 3,168
Utilized during the year 1] {14.299)
Balance st end of year 41,514 IHA53

At 3] December 2020, the Group has outstanding bank guaraptees of SR 37 million {31 December 20019
SR 7 million) issued by local and foreign banks in respect of import of finisled goods and other supplies,

At 3 December 2020, the Group has owtstanding bank letter of credits of SR 41 million {31 December
200%: SR 34 million) isswed against imiport of finished goods and other supplics.
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PREPAYMEMTS AND ADVANCES

Addvinves

Addvances to suppliers
Crher ndvances
Total advances
Prepaid expenses

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in hand
Bank balasces — curvent secound
Cash and cash eguivalents in the staternent of fiisaincial position

Bamk everdrafis used for cash masagement purposes
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows

SHARE CAPITAL

Authormsed share capatal (shares of 5B 10 each)

Iszued and fully paid up capital {shares of 3R 10 cach)

3} December 3 December
2020 2019

17,241 17,131

3,043 4.47F

21,154 - 21608

4,902 5, T
26,146 27304

X December 3 December
Z0i 200%

17339 1,504
GLA6T Gl 158
TR.906 61,752

= {146,548

79,900 47,204
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
i 0, () £:50,000
U, D) £A0, 00

AL 3 December 2020, the authorized, issued and paid up share copital of the Company is SE 630 millicn

consisting of 63 millon shares of SR 10 each,

STATUTORY RESERVE

The new Sawdi Arnbion Regulations for Companies isseed on 25 Rajab 1437H (comesponding 1o 2 May
2016} requires companies te st aside 107% of its net ineome in each year to a statutory resceve umiil such
reserve reaches 30% of the share capital. The Company completed legal Frmalities on 26 April 2009 with
regard o the amendment of its Bylaws, This reserve 15 currently mod available for distnbution o the
shareholders of the Company. Due e the accumulated loss position as at 31 December 20240, no such

transfer was required as at the cumrent reporting date.
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NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

31 Decembaer 2020

MO percentage

Mon=currenl assels

Current assets

Mon-current lianhilivies
Cuorrent Habdlites

Ml naseds

et assets attributable o NCI

Hevenue

Profit | {loss)

(T |

Taotal comprehensive (loss) §incmme

PFrofit { (loss) allocated to NC|

O] allocated to N1

Cash Mows used in opernting netivities

Cash flows (used in) | from investment
aclivities

Cash Mows From / {used in) financing
wctivities (dividends (o NCI: nil)

el decrease in cash and cosh equivalenis

31 Decernber 20149

M pereentage

Mon-cumenl assels

Current nssets

Man-curment liabilities
Current liabilities

Met assets

Met assets attributable 1o NCI

Rievens

Profit £ {loss)

]

Total compreheisive (loss) | meome
Profit 7 {loss) allecated o MCT

OCT allocated w MCT

Cash Nlows used in operating activities

Cash flows (used in} ! from investment activities
Cash flows from / {used in) financing activitics

{dividends to NCT: nil)
Met decrense in cash and cash equivalents

Imtra group
NVEEAC EMS  Adivetments Total
e L
31,480 L - 31,550
65,803 50,575 - 125,458
(2187 (5.515) - (7,712)
159.41m) {30,536) = (B9, 946)
A5, Th6 23,584 - 59,350
14,307 212 - s
69172 3,127 - 71,999
(1. 44m) 4,553 - 113
- (41 - (41}
(1,440 4,512 - a2
(57i) 1184 - Gikg
= () = (1)
4,607 33,289 - 37,864
{100y i - (1017}
{1,917) (2874} - (4.800)
1580 30376 - 32,95
Intra group
KVEEAC EMS Adjustiments Tmal
4 26%
24,300 265 - 24 565
99,211 64, 6k - 163 817
(B0,2TE) (38,004 = (119,271
{6,026) (6453 - _ 12479
37,207 19424 - 566311
14,883 5,050 - 19,933
G%315 15,02 83,407
{6,526) 5,505 - {621
d (1371 & (717
(s, 5216 5,168 - {1,138)
{2,610 1.535 - {1,075}
. (191 (191
14,742 1154 - 15,80
(1,232 . (1.232)
(12,5342} (48007 = {17.342)
DGE [3.646) & (2678}
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LOANS AND BORROWINGS

The Group has credit facility agreements with local and forcign commercial banks for long and short term
bomrowings in Sawli Rival, US Dollar, United Arab Emirates Dirham and Jordanian Dinar. Such facilities were
obtainesd principally under Murabaha / Tawarrug arrangements. The utilised portion of tse loing term focilitics are
repayable on equal menthly instalments ranging between four 1o six years, Certain facility agreements are secured
against promissory notes and pledge of certain building of the Group. Corporate guarantees of the Group are
provided wherever required for loans 10 subsidiaries. The facilities bear Anancial charges on prevailing market
rifes, The apreements contain certain covenanis, which among other things, regquires cenain financial ratics 1o be

maintained.

Crarrend:
Lease Liability
Bank overdran
Bank loans

Now-crurrent:
Lesse Liabiliny
Hank loans

The folbowing bank loans are cutstanding as ar:

Eingdlom of
Sauch Arahin

Lnited Arab
Emirntes

Jordan

Lsn LIBOR + 2.95%

PEr Annum

Reconciliation of bank boans are ns follows;

Balance as af 1 January

Procesds

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
United Arob Emirates

Jordan

Nepaypmenss

Kingdom of Sawdi Arabkia
United Arab Envicates

Jordan

Balamee as ai 31 December 220

Mominal
Curreney inferest rafe
AR 2.6%—4.1 6% per
annum
Ush 2. 7% -2, 8% per
SITNTINIETY
AED | momih EIBOR + 4%

per anoum {min of 4.5%}

Year of
matrity
20 -
24

2021

plin] |

20210

31 December 31 December

020 219

£,017 A61%

= 16,548

271211 279,501

TR ameel

5.l 204

104,256 BT 6E]

109,934 035,075
31 Decemler 2020 31 December 2019
Face  Carrying Face Camying
value  amennt value amount

A62935 314,600 STX60 1744916

0,302 80,300 30813 56,304

2373 5.144 23,37 f, 751

93,750 A2 03,750 20,211

3TT.467 367,182

7,182 551,064

§36,178 [ 750,635

- 3,565

. L1694

Bi6. 178 T55.894

(RO, A000) (916,457

(1,603) [18,330)

(21,8%0) 4,974 |

(H25,893) (039, 781)

377467 67,182
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LIOANS AND BORRODWINGS (CONTINUED)

Reconcilmtion of movement of liabilities 1o cash flows arising from financing activitics

Bank
overdraft Loans.
Balance as 1 January 2020 16,548 I6T, 142
Changes from financing activities
Procesds from leans and bamowings - B3 178
Payment of loans and borrooings {16, 548) (B25.893)
Total changes from lnancing sctivities {16,548} 10,285
Qther chunpes
Finanee expenses - 16320
Finance expenses paid - (17,987}
Accrued interest payvable movement 1,667
Balance us 31 December D020 - 377 467
Bank
Crverdrafi Loans
Balance as | January 2019 11,388 551069
Changes from financing activities
Proceeds from beans amd bosmowings 5. 160 55,894
Payment of boans and borrowings { 539781
Total changes from Rsancmg achvilies 5. 160 = [1R3RET)
Chher changes
Finance expendes - 2R 2T
Fmance expenses paid (32,280
Accrued interest pavable moverent - 4,007
Balance as 31 December 2019 16,545 167,182
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
A December 1l December
2020 019
Met defined benefit liability 15070 24,121
15070 24,121

The Group operates an approved unfunded employees” end of service benefits plan ("EOSE™) for s
emplovees as required by the local Labor Law.

L]

In Kingdom of Sawdi Arabia (KSA), the plan enfitles an emiployee who completed over twi but less
than five years of seTvice, to receive a payment equal to one-third of their last month half salary for ench
completed year of service. Similarly, an employee who completed upto five years to receive a payment
equal to 50%% of their last monthly salary for each completed yvear of service and over five but less than
fen yeors of service, o receive & payment egual o twe-thinds of their last monthly salary for cach
completed vear of service. Further, an employes who commpleted over ten vears of service, to receive a
payment equal to their last menthly salary for each completed year of service,

In United Arab Emirates (UAE) the plan entitles a emploves who completed over one yvear but Jess
than three years of service, 1o receive o payment equal 1o oae-third of their last month salary For each
completed year of service, Similarly, an emploves who completed over three vears but less than five
years of seTvice, toreceive a pavment equal o two-thirds of their last momthly salary for each completed
vear of service. Further, an employee who completed over live years of service, o receive a payment
equnl o their last monthly salary for each completed year of service.

43
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Reconcilintion in employees end of service benefiis is as follows:

Balance at heginming of year

Included in Profit and Loss
Current service cost
Interest cost

Included (n Oiher comprehensive income
Actuariol Joss / {pain}

Benefit paid

Balance at end of year

Represented by
Met definved benefit Liability for plang in:

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
- United Arab Emiraics

Actuarial assumptions

A December 3 December
2020 M9
24,121 25751
2,538 2675
HE9 1,065
3424 3743
1.553 2055
(4025} (7428)
25070 24,121
21 489 20,731
3,581 3,280
25,070 24,121

The following are the principal actsaral assumptions applied ai 31 December 2030 and 31 December

20109

Driscount take
Salary increase
Average years of past service

Sensitivity analysis

Particulars

EQSE |La|;|i'|||3,'

1% Discount rade

= 1% Discount e

H1% Salary morease rate

1% Salory incrense rabe

1 Year mortality age sct back

1 ¥ear mortality age set forward

,_l_l_ L‘_rr«l:umh-:r 202

KSA
250 %% paa
1 % pa
T years

UAE
1.5 % p.a.
1.5 % p.n,
1280 years

M December 2020

=l

25,070
(831}
Q03
B2
(B45)
(171}

[ RLE]

31 December 2009

297 % p.n
2% pa
533 years

UAE
242 % pa
2.5 % pa
11, Kb years

31 December 2019

o Change

-3 301%
J60%,
J56%
-3.37%

~0L69%
0,77%

EYINEOD %5 Change

24,121
(741
B10
B0
{735)
(8)
104

-3.58%
301%
3AR%

=3_64d%

=K%
(LAl
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AL HASSAN GHAZI TRRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY

(A Saudi Jeint S1ock Cormpany)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEXNTS

Far the year ended 31 Decervber 2020

{In Thousands of Saudi Rivals, Unless Oitherwise stated)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

PYDBO: Present value of defined benefit obligations

E.'_It,'.l'ﬂbﬁ !J't'.lrt_-fl! ETLETINEN

Salaries and benefits
Social secusity contrbutioms
Expenscs related 1o post -employment defined benefit plans

Expenses related to pand leaves

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables due 1o related partics {note 29}
Trade pavables — third party
Total trade pavables

Acerued expenses

Employes benefits

Auamnounts due o related parties (noke 29)
Contract liabilities — advance from customers
Payahle 1o project vendors

(rher payables

Total sther payables

Total trade and other payables

Mon-cument
Current

FAKAT AND FOREIGN INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

Zakat provision

31 December

X1 December

Maovement of Compary s Zakat provision for the year ended 31 December comprise the following:

Balanece, begining of the year
Current year expense

Feversal of prior period
Charge for the year

Pawd during the year

Balance., end of the year

2020 2019
TH, 743 £5,323
1543 3071
3424 3,745
2432 4,125
&H,142 96462
31 December 31 December
2 e L]
165,141 21530
81294 31,732
247435 269072
40,816 47 143
14,397 14,152
- A2
fAH2 G979
17,267 16,4159
16, M8 17.421
45,270 101 030
M2 T0s 3002
= 5,0
341,705 178102
J4LT0E s 1
2020 2019
15,691 16,927
6,740 4 B8
- (4,500
6,740 18
(3061} (1.416)
19,370 15,601
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ZARKAT AND FOREIGN INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (CONTINUELD)

Status of assessmients
£akat:

Standalone:
Lakal assessments have been finalised with the General Authority for fakat and Tax (GAFT) up 1o the vear

ended 31 Decervher 26 for HNGISC amd 31 December 2007 for 13CL and IHSCL and 31 December 2011
for ASDAA,

Consohidated;

The Company filed Zakat declarations on a consolidated basis from the yvear 2008 anwards for HGISC,
150 and THRCL, The results of ASDAA were reporied in the consolidated declaration from 13 MNovembes
ni4,

During the current vear the GAZT raised its final assessment For the year 2014 raising an sdditiosal Zakat
demand of SR 5.6 million. Management has contested the aforesaid final assesament (raised by GAZT) by
filing its abjection 1w the appellate authorities. Fusther, the GAZT has alao raised objections in relation to
certain aspect for the years 2005 10 2008 against which the Growp las submitted its respoise and the same
is under review. However, the final assessments for the vears from 2015 to 2018 and also 2009 are vet o
b raised by the GAZT. Managerment, based an the advice of 115 zakat consultant, believes that the current
level of provisioning i sufficien.

Forcign Income Tax:

Duwe to taxable losses in Jordan subsidiary - NVEEAC there is no foreign income tax liabiliy.
FROYVISIONS

The movement m provesions 15 as follows:

31 December 11 December

2020 2019
Balance, beginning of the year 11,770 11683
Charge for the year A0E5 7,251
Litalized during the year (3.996) {T,166)
Balance, end of the year 11,529 11,770

Provision related to warranties crecated as per Giroup's policy Tor the parpode of repair of replacements of
defected gonds.




AL HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY
(A Saudi Jeint Stock Company b

NOTES TOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2020
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OFERATING SEGMENTS

For management purposes, ihe Group is organized into three main bsiness sepments based on indemal
reparting provided to the chicf operating decision maker:

Heating, ventilotion and air-conditioning solutions (HYAC): Represents residentinl and commercial air
conditionars including chillers and related services.

Home appliances: Represents televisions, washing machines, dryers, refrigerators, irons, gos cookers, and
floor care,

All athers segrments represents emergy solutions and maobiles.

The Executive Management Commiitee moniters the operating results of its busingss units separately for the
purpase of making decisions about resource allacation and performonce pssessmends, Segment performance
is evaluated based on profit or hss and s measured consistently with profit of loss i the coisolidated
financial statensenis.

Transfer prices berween operating segments are on mutually agreed terms in a manner similar to ransactions
with third pamies.

Tl Adiisrarenis
HVALC Homne repertalle AN miher i

solutions  gpplignees  spmonls  gepmendss  elimimiions Tontial

As g A1 Drecember 2020
Assers and liabilities:
Sepment liabilities (T47.317)  (188.044)  (935361)  (3B,H32) IBT,055  (787,138)
Far the jpear emded 31
December 2020
Segmenl revenuwes aH,511 JR9 91T U6, 428 G271 - 932,609
ﬂlgrltrll; pmﬁt ! (Boess)
betore xakat and
[urgig. income tax !'?.']"951 IB-HE!- II..]!'." d-.dl'." - 16,874
Toral Ardinsimernis
HVAC Houe reporfabde AL other and
sofutiones oppnlionces SERITEITT FepmeRis  pliminations Tartsel
As ar 37 Decemher 2009
Assets and liabilitics:
Sogrment asaels A58, 142 i3 s 1,922,44] TH4IR {525, 5098) 1467271
Segment linhilitics (BO5,293)  (1E4.%21F (990214 [49.675) Me363  (821,326)
Far the vear ended 31
Irecember 209
Sepment revenues S60.401 304,255 Bod, 650 1%, 166 - BE2 512
Segments profil /[ loss)
before zakai and foreign
iibC ifie La% (3T.283) 2 (56,291} 5.611 - {30.680)

More than $0% (2019: #1%) of the Growp's revenue ond 92% (2019: 91%) of the Group's total assets are based
in Klingdom of Saudi Arabia.

47
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e
=

REVENUE

The Group's revenue is derived from contrscrs with customers for sale of productz and services provided.
Control of product is transferred at a poomt an tme and directly sold to customers and when services are
rendered.

HVAC Honre AN orher
Far the pear ended 31 Decewiber 2020 scrlirliis apflances SEgHI S Towtal
AT SR AR 5K
Sandi Arabia 530,572 310,119 = HE9,701
Jordan 5439 i, THE 3044 69,871
UAE 2 N 3117 3,127
Total 36201 LR 271 432 6409
HVAC Hawme Al prher
Fowr the year ended 31 December 2009 SIS appliaces FEEMEAES Toatal
3R SR RS SR
Saudi Arabia 354,594 244 821 - T 415
Jardan 5807 39AM 3074 B35
LIAE - - 15,052 15042
Total J60,401 4 255 18,166 &2 822
COST OF SALES
3 December 31 December
e 1] 29
Material cost TOL433 it BT
Installatsom cosl G, 200 g 1499
Impairment losscs on invenionies fuoie &) 13,529 5. 168
Others 12917 11,452
737,130 T17.17h
OTHER INCOME

Other income for the yenr ended 31 December comprise the following:

1 December 21 December

2020 2019
Incorme on awand of legal matter (refer note 22,1 below) 13,430 -
Ciam on dispasal of property and cguipment s 1,923
Cithers, net Lo4r 4,045
14,505 3,968

During the year, the Group through one of its subsidiaries (EM3) was able 10 enter inte a settlernent
agreement in relation to an ongeing litigation with & customer. As a result the Company received a
settlernent amount in respect of its claims. The amount recorded in 2020 also included amounts for
recaovery of legal costs,

LR
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SELLIMG AND DISTRIBUTHON EXPENSES

Selling and diswibution expenses for the vear ended 31 December comprise the following:

31 December 21 December

2020 2019
Emplovee costs 47,4K1 54,167
Dealer promotional incentives 11,3495 B, M
Publicity and adverising 645 8371
Sales comumission 5,521 4,147
Depreciation on ROL asset {note 4.1) 7,780 1,123
Transpostation 4,264 4,529
Warraimly expenses R L &, 150
Benn 1,675 3353
Lilinbes 457 el
Printing and stationery 3R2 Tz
F.L'pa.in: amel maintenamoe 238 138
lsurance 194 3ad
Materials and insmllations 159 Ral
(Hhers .24 1,647
95567 104,434
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Ciemeral and sdminisirative expenses for the year ended 31 December comprise the following:
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Employee costs TS 42,195
Depreciation (note 4.1} 12,354 14,732
Professional fees TA404 1054
Travel 41 3728
Rent IATI 1,944
Subcantractor eosl 2135 1.732
Repairs amd maimienance 1,776 17
Inswrance 1,224 1031
Utilities 1,214 =T
Conmmumication B9 OTR
Printing and stationery T34 G0
Entertainment 4 Fr
Cithers 8.200 3,801
B4.629 B7.393
FINAMNCE COSTS
Fisance costs, el for the year ended 31 December comprise the following:
31 December 31 December
(e ] 014
Finance charges 14,897 25, 7M)
Bank charges X, 2852
Imterest on lease linbilitics ThH2 |02
18, 7ol 29,303

4k
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1.

BASIC AMD DILUTED EARMNINGS /(LI5S PER SHARE

Bagic and diluted eamings / {loss) per share amounts are coleulated by dividing the eamnings / {loss) for the
year ended attnbutable fo equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted averape number of ordinsry
shares outstanding, as follows;

31 Deeember 31 December

2020 2019
Eamings ! {loss] attributable 1o ordinary sharehalders 537 {49,785}
Shares Shares

Werghted average number of erdinary shares outstanding during the year 63,000 23, 0]

Basic and diluted carnings / (boss) per share 15 (i, 791

DPFERATING LEASE

F i )
At 31 December, the future minmum lease payments under non -cancellable leases which relates w
warehauses and beanches wene payable as Fea D

31 December 31 Dwecernber

2020 2019

Less than one year 60136 5768

Between ome and five yenrs 7,597 708

More than five years 4.731 BRIT

Taal 18364 21,893
Avreunits J'r.rr.lg.ru'.:ﬂ! iR consolidaied peofit or dore

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

Lease [ rental expense 154601 14,670

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table shows the camrying amounts and fair valuees of the financial assets and financial liabilities
inchuding therr levels in the fur value hicrarchy for financial instraments measured ot fair values, 16 docs oo
inchude fair value information for financinl pssets and financial liahilities not measured at fair vale if the
carrying amount is o repsenable approximation of fair valee,

Carrying amount Fair Value
M-
current Current Level Level Level
assets assets 1 2 3 Total
31 December 2020
Financial asiels
Triale anel edher receivables 11,254 M8 - - - -
Cash amd cash equivalents - T - e - .
Total 11,284 427624 A z ; E




AL HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 Decamber 2019
Financial assets

Trade aiwd other receivables
Cash and cash squivalents

Tuotal

3 December 2020
Financial liabiliies
Loans

Leass liabilities

Traude ond oiher payvables
Bank overdrahs

Tutal

3 December 2009
Fimancial liabilitics
Loanes

Lease liahilities

Trade and other payahles
Hank overdrafis

Todnl

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Carrying simount Fair Value
Mom-
current Current Level  Level  Level
st (ESE ! 2 L Total
B443 376,000 - -
- 63,752 - ) =
9443 430 142 : ¥ .
Carrying amount Fair Valng
Maon-
current Current Level  Level  Lewel
liabilities  Jiahbilitics | ) 3 Total
104,256 iz - - - .
5680 017
. 342705 - . - .
109,93 620,933 . : R i
Crrrying amount Fair Value
!l
curme Currend Level Level Lewel
lishilities  lizbilities I 2 3 Total

ET.6H] 274,501

B4 BE18
Q5 00 2TR 102
- 16,548
190973 S8 169

Significant balances and tronsactions with related pariies included in the consalidated fisancial siements ore os

finlboaws:
D 1o related parties — under trade ad oiber payables;
Amount of
MName Relationship Nature of Transaciion Transactions Closing Balance
31 December 31 December 3 December 31 December
020 2019 2020 2019
ase of Bt i 28552 158,119
L3 Shoker  Associaie P"n'-lh'm' of finished G : % ol
gl
449,000 40,00k -
Dividend received o
LG ; ; 58052 48,219 12,022 T.HSA
Bleciogics  Asgociaie Purchase of finished
{Levant) oads
Board of  Key Remuneration and 76l 1621 2,226
Directors  masdgemerl mesting attendonce fee
165, 141 217 540

51
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Koy manazermen perseanel compersation:

20zm 2019
Short-term employee benehits 531 FA L
Post-employment banefig 3z 417
5431 Teld

CAFITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's policy s to maintain a strong capital base so a8 10 maintan investor, ereditor and market confidence
anrdd 10 sustain futare developrent of the business, Management monitors the returs on capital as well as the level
af divideisds 10 oedinary sharcholders,

The board of directors seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returms that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings aimd the advantages and secunty alforded by a sound capaal pasitien,

The Group momitors capital wang a ratio of “aljusted net debt’ 1o “adjusted egquity”. For this porpese, adjusted
net debd is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing bans amd borrowings, less cash ond cosh
equivalems, Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity.

The Group's adjusted net debi to equity ratio at 31 December 2020 was as follows:

2020 2019
Total liabilities TRT.I3H H23.326
Less: cash and cagh equivalents (70,90 ) (63,752)
Adjusted net debt MWT LT TSNS5T4
Total equity 652,520 5 045
Acdljusted eguity 652,50 45,945
Acljustied mel delst b adjusted equity ratis 1085 1 18%
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RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group bas exposure to the following risk arising from financial instruments:

= Credin risk
= Liguudity risk
«  DMarket nsk

Risk Man

The Company’s haard of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Cirgup’s nsk management framewaerk. The board of directors has established the audit committee, which s
responsible for developing and monitoring the Group®s risk management policies. The commines reports
regularly to the board of directors on its activities.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risk faced by the Group,
to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policics and systems are reviewed regularly o reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's
activitics. The Group, through its trminimg and monogement standards and procedures, aims o maintain a
disciplined and constructive control envitonment in which all emplovees understand their moles and
obligations.,

The Group™s Audit Committes oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the sk management framework in
relation o the risk faced by the Group. The Group Audit Committee 1s assisted in its role by Internal Audi.
Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

it
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if & customer or counterparty te a financial instruments
fils to meet its contractual obligations, and arses principally from the Group's trade receivable and cash
and cash equivalents.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade grd otfier recetvalles

The Growp's expesure o credin risk is influenced mainly by the individual characstersistic of each customer.
However, management also consaders the factors that may influence the ceedil risk of its customers base,
including the defaul risk of the ibustry and the country in which customers operste, Furiher, details of
concentration of revemee are mcluded in nate 19,

The Group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for
creditworthiness before the Group”s standard paymicit and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Sale
limits are established for each customer and reviewed annually,

The CGiroup limits its exposure to credit risk from trade receivables by establishing a defined limit w each
category of custemers bosed on the historical experience with the customer,

In manitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped sccording to their credit charscleriatics,
meluding whether ihey are an individual or a legal entity, whether they are o wholesale, retail or end-user
customer, their geographic location, industry and existence of previous finamcial difficulties.

The Group is closcly monitoring the economic environment in taking actions to limit its exposure to
customers in countries expersencing parbcular economic volatility. Purchase limits are monitored,
particularly for customers operating in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, because the Group's experience is that
the recent economic volatility has had a greater impact for customers than for customers in other countries.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents ils estimate of expected losses in respest
of trade amd other receivables.

As at 3 December, the maximum exposare o the credin visk for wtal current and non-curment imde and
odher receivables by geographic region was as Follows:

Far the vear ended 31

Decenrbpr
i Fll} 2019
K34 269,094 a2 512
Jordan 53170 3,074
LIAE 43710 e, 548
365,984 31 34

As at 31 December, the ageing of trade receivables that were past due and not impaired was as fallows;

For the vear endea 31

Dacember
L0 2019
Mowe thian 90 divs less than 120 diys 106,868 OR 905
More than |20 days to one year 47,572 44,1054
More than ome year 276 BT 3M
_ MR TI6G 230323

Managemeni believes that the unimpaired amounds that are past due by more than 0 days are sl
collectible in full, based on historical payments behaviour and extensive analysis of customers credit nsk,
including underlying custemers® credit ratings if they are available,

Cash gnd cosh conivalents
The Group held cash ot bank of SR 79 million (200%: 5B 63,8 millien). The cash a1 banks are hebd with
banks with geod credit ratings,

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for frade receivables
from customers os 01 31 December 2020:

Grross earrylng Welghited- Lass
1 Drecember 2020 Ao uni average loss allowance (%)
| =4} dlaxys 145,798 24M 1.5%,
Q1180 days 4,070 L 1A%
181-2T days 13649 408 34%
2713640 days 2471 T 9.4%
Mare than 360 days 201,594 4,118 4965
453,584 oH, 751
Cirass carrying Weighted- Lioss
3| Dwcemiber 2009 amoun average o il %
1901 days 156,902 1859 1.1%
91180 days T6.976 iha 1.2%
181-270 days 28 643 521 1.8
271344 days 15,035 &10 4. 06%
bore than 360 days 155 408 TR 41.58%
462 968 A0
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RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Groap will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations nssociated with
its financial liabilities that are setiled by delivenng cash or anather financial asset, The Group's approach
to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity 10 meet its liabilitics
when they are due, under bath nonmal and siressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage 1o the Group’s reputation. The Group secks continucusly to comply with its legnl
obligations, including any, relating o its financing agreements.

Exposwre to liguidite rizk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial linhilities at the reporting date, The
amouns are gross and undiscounted. and inchide contraciual interest payments and exclude the impact of
nedting agreements,

Tovrad Maorre than oue
Cirrrping cortraciel  Tess thar one  pear bt less
31 December 220 armbensirnt casfiffais Yewr tran 5 years
Liabilities
Leans and borrowings 377,467 394421 2774011 117.a10
Lease [mhilities 10,6497 11,515 007 6518
Traxle and oiher payables MITE  34A6I1 BAA2D =
TOTAL TH0 B64 749,777 G5 640 124,028
Topal Merre then ane
Carrying cortraciial  less thaw ome vear bt less
A December 2019 amain caehflows Ty than § vears
Linbilitics
Lanns and bomowings 354,277 van 281,635 0458
Lease liahilitics 14912 15,362 518 B,344
Bank overdraft 16,548 &, 548 16,548 -
Trade ard ather payables 373,102 T2 27R102 0]
TOTAL TSR I 717,135 FH3, 123 194,01 2

The abeve tble represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating 1o financial liabilities which are
not wsually closed out before contractual maturity.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in the market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices — will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
afgective of market risk management is o manage and control market risk exposures within acceplable
pararmeeters, while optimising the retumn,

ARTERCY FIE

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due 1o changes in fareign
exchange rates. The Group’s transactions are principally in Saudi Riyals. However, the Group has
investments in foreign subsidiarics, whose net assets are exposed to currency translation risk. Currently,
such exposures are mainky related to exchange rale movements beiween local curmencies against Jordanian
Dinar and U A.E. Dirhams. The Group®s management menitoss such fuctuations and manages its effect on
the consolidated financial statements accordingly,
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RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Market risk {eontinued]
Currgicy yisk fcourrimred)

Generally, borrowings are denominated in currencies that match the cash flows generated by the underlying
operations of the Group - primarily Saudi Arabian Rival, but also US Dellar and Jordanian Dinar. In
addition. imterest om borrowings is denominated in the currency of the borrowing. This provides an
econcmic hedge without derivatives being entered inio and therefore hedge acceunting is not applied in
these circumstances, Cumrency risk regarding purchase in Euro is immaterial.

Profit raie risk

Profit rate risk arises from the possibility that the changes in profit rates will affect either the Fair values or
the future cash flows of financial mstruments. The Company manitors positions daily w ensure
maintenance of positions within established gap limits.

The interest rate profile of the Group's interest - bearing financial instruments as reported to the management
af the Growp is as follows,

2020 2019

Financial labilibes
Figed-rale imstruments FT0, 1446 154519
Vartable-rate instraments 1331 ) 20,211
377467 83,730

Sensirivity An

A reasanably possible change of 1% interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decrensed)
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other varinhles, in
particular forgign currency exchange nfes, remain constant.

Frofit or less Equity met of tax
lnerense Decrease Increns: Drecrease
31 December 202
Variable mte instruments T3 {73} T3 (73)
21 December 2019
Variable rate instruments ) (290) 150 {290}

The Group does net account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL, Therefore,
@ change in interest rates af the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

DIVIDEND»
Mo dividend has been paid during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019%: nil).
SURSEQUENT EVENTS

Mo material events occurred subsequent to the reporting date which could materially affect the consolidated
financial statements and the related disclosures for the year ended 31 December 20240,
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